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The year 2001 was a study in contrasts at American Water
Works. The Company’s ability to consistently deliver
shareholder value was enhanced by the decision-of the
Board of Directors in September to accept an offer from
RWE AG to purchase the Company’s common stock for
$46 a share. The result is a future filled with great prom-
ise as the Company anticipates joining RWE AG and
becoming part of the North and South American Region
of the RWE Thames Water Division, the world’s third
largest water operation.

Qur rigorous pursuit of growth by consolidation con-
tinued as we extended our reach domestically in the
southeast and northwest, and for the first time beyond
US boundaries into three Canadian provinces — grow-
ing our water solutions business four-fold in the process.

We also continued our focus on creating efficiencies
while improving service through a system-wide Customer
Call Center, and through the centralization of common
financial functions into one Shared Services Center.

Yet against this backdrop of progress, we were faced
with several disappointments and challenges during
2001. Earnings were essentially flat, impacted by in-
creased expenses and dropping sales. Water use by in-
dustrial customers was down 5% for the year and 8% in
the fourth quarter alone. We have also had to adapt to a
new way of operating, where our people and processes
must be prepared to defend our facilities against threats
few of us would have believed possible just a few months
ago.

However, we are pleased to report that there was one
constant within the contrasts of the year: The 6,400 men
and women of American Water Works remained commit-
ted to our goal of becoming the water resource manager
of choice.

Results

Revenues increased by $88 million to $1.44 billion,
largely through timely rate increases, the expansion of
our water solutions business, and the addition of 40,000
new utility customers. Fully diluted earnings per share
for the year were $1.61, including a 10-cent charge re-
lated to the expenses associated with the Company’s ac-
quisition by RWE AG. This charge was offset by a
three-cent gain from the sale of assets to the City of
Salisbury, Massachusetts. Net income to common stock
including these items totaled $161 million for the year,
compared to $157 million in 2000. Without these events,
net income to common was $168 million, resulting in

earnings per share of $1.69, up 5% from $1.61 in 2000.
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Water sales during 2001 were more impacted by the
economy than the weather. Weak economic conditions
caused several of our large industrial customers to file
for bankruptey protection, while others curtailed opera-
tions. As a result, water sales in this sector were down by
2.2 billion gallons during the year.

Operational Consolidation

Our focus on long-term cost containment continued dur-
ing 2001 with the consolidation of treasury, cash man-
agement and accounting functions. By the end of the year,
we had centralized all of the utility financial operations
across the system into one Shared Services Center in Mt.
Laurel, NJ. We also opened our new state-of-the-art Cus-
tomer Call Center in Alton, IL, and began providing
round-the-clock support to the more than 15 million
people we now serve.

Industry Gonsolidation

In 2001, we purchased the water and wastewater assets
of the City of Coatesville PA, for $48 million. This sys-
tem serves 8,600 water customers and 6,500 wastewater
customers, making this purchase of municipally owned
assets the largest privatization project of its kind in the
nation. The transaction is expected to generate approxi-
mately $6.5 million in annual revenue for the Company,
but the benefits don’t end there. The City of Coatesville
deposited the proceeds of the sale into a reserve fund
and that fund is generating an annual return of $2.7 mil-
lion, which the City is using to reduce taxes and support
community programs. Nine other small acquisitions were
completed by our utility subsidiaries during the year,
representing another §1 million in annual revenues for
the Company.

In early January 2002, the Company completed the
six-state acquisition of the water and wastewater assets
of Citizens Communications for $979 million. This trans-
action, which is expected to generate $140 million a year
in additional revenues, increases the Company’s service
base by more than 300,000 water and wastewater cus-
tomers, and strengthens our team of associates by an
additional 300 new members.

Consistent with the Company’s long-standing strategy
to take steps that benefit customers and shareholders
while advancing industry consolidation, we began the
process to divest five subsidiaries in New England. In
August, the Company agreed to sell the American Water
Works operations in Connecticut, Massachusetts, upstate
New York, and New Hampshire to the Kelda Group plc
and its Aquarion Company subsidiary. The transaction,




which we expect to be complete by mid-year 2002, is
valued at about $118 million in cash plus the assump-
tion of $115 million of debt.

In our water solutions business, we gained consider-
able market share with the $160 million acquisition of
Azurix North America and Azurix Industrials Corpora-
tion. This addition brings the expertise of more than 1,000
new associates to American Water Services and enlarges
our water solutions service territory by six states and three
Canadian provinces. It is expected that this acquisition
will increase annual revenues for American Water Ser-
vices by more than $150 million and will significantly
expand the Company’s presence in water and wastewa-
ter solutions, including operations and maintenance,
engineering, carbon regeneration, underground infra-
structure rehabilitation and residuals management.

The Next Logical Step

Perhaps more than at any other time in our Company’s
history, a look at the past provides us with such a prom-
ising view of the future. In January 2002, American Wa-
ter Works shareholders overwhelmingly approved the
Company’s proposed acquisition by leading international
multi-utility company RWE AG. We believe regulatory
approvals of the transaction will be complete in early
2003. Once that milestone has been achieved, Ameri-
can Water Works will take the next logical step in its
115-year evolution and join forces with RWE’s Thames
Water Division. The result will be a compelling combi-
nation of companies and a powerful new force in the glo-
bal water market.

American Water Works has an established record of
having responsibly addressed the water and wastewater
service needs in thousands of communities throughout
the nation. The acquisition of Azurix provides us the
opportunity to expand this record beyond the US and to
serve three Canadian provinces. We do so with the con-
viction that consolidation and economic regulation rep-
resent the best long-term solution to water service
challenges confronted by our industry.

Reliable water service, which is essential to commu-
nity health, safety and economic prosperity, dictates ef-
fective long-term regional planning and access to massive
amounts of new capital investment. We look forward to a
future with strong partners who share our views, goals,
objectives and values. We are convinced that together,
we will better serve customers at a lower cost than would
be possible if we did not join forces.

A Different Kind of Future

It is simply impossible to review the events of 2001 with-
out commenting on the tragedy of September 11 and also
its impact on the people and the business of American
Water Works. Both are forever changed.

As the scope of the disaster became clear, our associ-
ates quickly got to work to help. They held fundraisers
across the country and collected donations that were
matched by the company and sent to charities involved
in the relief efforts. Instead of exchanging holiday gifts,
our associates chose to send the gift money to organiza-
tions that supported the families impacted by the trag-
edy. Bottled water was shipped to the rescue workers in
New York City, Washington, DC, and Somerset, PA. In
cities across the U.S., American Water Works people
stood in line to donate blood. Many volunteered to work
alongside rescue personnel in New York City. Of course
none of this compassion and consideration comes as a
surprise to anyone who knows the men and women of
American Water Works.

The Company also got busy taking steps to protect our
facilities and our people, although by necessity the de-
tails must be kept confidential. While we have always
maintained responsible levels of security at all of our
operations, since September 11 our approach has been
more stringent. We made significant investments to pro-
tect our ability to continue fulfilling our responsibilities
to those we serve. As warnings of credible threats per-
sist, we maintain a high level of vigilance throughout the
system. These are the “new normal” standards by which
we operate our business each day.

We are working hard to strike a balance between a
community’s natural interest in our business and our need
to defend our plants, equipment and people from threats
unimaginable just a few months ago. It is a different world,
and we are doing our very best to adjust to the new reali-
ties while never losing sight of our responsibilities to our
shareholders, our customers, our associates and our
neighbors.

As always, we deeply appreciate the support and con-
fidence of our shareholders, and the commitment and
contributions of our associates.

J. James Barr Marilyn Ware
President and Chairman of
Chief Executive Officer the Board

March 1, 2002




Operating revenues
{in millions)

_ $1,351

_31,131
_ $1,200

96 97 98 99 00 01

(Dallars in thousands, except per share and per customer amounts or as atherwise noted)

5-year Average

For the years ended December 31, 2001 2000 Change 1996 Percent Change
Total revenues $1,438,887 $1,350,590 7% $1,062,498 6%
Earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 649,540 624,038 4% 454,559 7%
Net operating profit after taxes (NOPAT) 272,939 275,988 (1%) 203,828 6%
Net income to common stack 160,839 157,361 2% 112,836 7%
Dituted earnings per common share
on average shares outstanding 1.61 1.61 - 1.26 5%
Common dividends per share 0.4 0.90 4% 0.70 6%
Net cash from operating activities 327,612 303,146 8% 239,512 6%
Total capital invested at year-end (incl. bank debt) 4,987,622 4,567,109 8% 3,494,535 7%
Common shareholders’ equity 1,758,018 1,669,677 5% 1,241,167 7%
Net utility plant 5,458,309 5,202,833 5% 3,977,607 7%
Utility customers served (thousands) 2,022 2,581 2% 2,403 2%
Percentags of Revenug Dollar
EBITDA 45.1% 46.2% (2%) 42.8% 1%
NOPAT 19.0% 20.4% (7%) 19.2% -
Net income to common stock 11.2% 11.7% (4%) 10.6% 1%
Net cash from operating activities 22.8% 22.4% 1% 22.5% -
Rates of Return
NOPAT Return on total capital investment 5.5% 6.0% (9%} 5.8% (1%)
Return on common shareholder’s equity 9.2% 9.4% (3%) 91% -
Ratios
Commaon equity ratio 35.6% 36.6% (3%) 35.5% -
Earnings payout ratio 58.4% 55.9% 4% 55.6% 1%
Capital Intensity
Revenue per dollar of invested
capital (whole dollars) $0.29 $0.30 (3%) $0.30 (1%)
Net utility plant per customer (whole dollars) $2,082 $2,016 3% $1,655 5%
Net incoms to Diluted earnings per Dividends per Beook value Market value
common stosk commen share comman share per share per share
(in millions) (on average =
shares outstanding) g
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American Water Works Company, inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Consolidated Summary of Selected Financial Data
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the years snded December 31, 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Revenues

Water service

Residential $ 806,220 $ 759,697 $ 733,956 $ 691279 $ 658,955

Commercial 289,027 278,463 262,940 249,564 235,561

Industrial 79,488 82,406 77,953 78,092 73,596

Public and other 159,224 153,302 149,531 146,299 137,289

Other water revenues 16,225 11,859 11,997 13,983 11,064

1,350,184 1,285,727 1,236,377 1,179,217 1,116,465

Wastewater service 26,453 24,389 24,480 20,820 14,909

Unregulated services 52,250 40,474 — - —

$ 1,438,887 $ 1,350,590 $ 1,260,857 $ 1,200,037 $ 1,131,374

Water sales (million gallons)

Residential 176,659 171,548 175,487 168,617 169,307
Commercial 82,715 82,455 81,857 79,115 78,542
Industrial 44,193 46,348 45,862 46,361 46,088
Public and other 40,791 40,784 41,477 40,110 39,831
344,358 341,135 344,683 334,203 333,768
Net income $ 161,483 $ 161,061 $ 138,948 $ 150,439 $ 137,691
Earnings per diluted common share
on average shares outstanding $ 1.61 $ 1.61 $ 1.40 $ 1.54 $ 1.42
Common dividends paid per share $ .94 $ .90 $ .86 $ .82 $ 76
At year-end
Water customers (thousands) 2,578 2,541 2,476 2,446 2,400
Wastewater customers (thousands) 44 40 40 39 25
Associates employed 6,400 5,060 4,970 5,128 5,110
Total assets $ 6,607,039 $ 6,134,798 $ 5,952,206 $ 5,458,658 $ 4,992,023

Preferred stocks with mandatory
redemption requirements

American Water Works Company, Inc. $ —_ $ — $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 40,000

Subsidiaries 30,474 32,902 34,020 37,298 39,734
Long-term debt

American Water Works Company, Inc. $ 207,000 $ 159,000 $ 211,000 $ 216,500 $ 131,000

Subsidiaries 2,233,019 2,112,165 2,182,097 2,115,687 1,965,924
Market price of common stock at year-end $ 41.7% $ 29.38 $ 21.25 $ 33.75 $ 27.31




ianagemsnt’s Discussion and Analysis

Description of the Business

American Water Works Company and The American
Water System

The Company’s goal is to consistently enhance long-term share-
holder value. Our strategies to produce value are: investing in
the business of water services, providing management services
to water and wastewater utilities, and delivering value added
services and products.

The core business of American Water Works Company is
the ownership of common stock of companies that enable
American Water Works to be a full water resource provider.
The combination of American Water Works with its subsidiar-
ies constitutes the American Water System — a system that
has functioned well for over 50 years. Fach subsidiary func-
tions independently, vet shares in the benefits of size and iden-
tity afforded by the American Water System.

Historically, the Company primarily invested in acquisi-
tions of water and wastewater utilities that complemented our
existing service territories or that enhanced the Company’s
geographic diversification. In addition, the Company has in-
vested in the common equity of its utility subsidiaries so that
they could reinforce, rehabilitate and replace existing service
infrastructure and provide for growth within existing service
territories.

The water utility industry is changing rapidly. Changes in
regulation, the need for significant capital investment, low
growth in consumption within existing service territories and
continuing pressures for increased efficiencies and produc-
tivity as well as new security requirements are changing the
nature of the industry. To maintain its leadership position in
this evolving industry, the Company will continue to grow
through acquisitions of water and wastewater utilities, through
the expansion of its unregulated businesses and by emphasiz-
ing shared services among its utility subsidiaries.

Regulated Utility Service

The regulated utility subsidiaries provide water and/or waste-
water service to approximately 10 million people in 23 states.
As public utilities, each company is subject to the rules of
both federal and state environmental protection agencies, par-
ticularly with respect to the quality of the water they distrib-
ute. In addition, with the exception of Michigan-American
Water Company, the utility companies function under economic
regulations prescribed by state regulatory commissions.

The mission of the utility subsidiaries of the Company is to
provide high quality, reliable water and wastewater service at
an affordable price. There are several keys to continued suc-
cess In this endeavor: efficient planning and deployment of
capital investment, cultivating experienced managers and
knowledgeable staff, supporting state-of-the-art water quality
programs, and maintaining responsive customer service.

Unregulated Services

o  Water and Wastewater Management Services
American Water Services continues to focus on the growing
water resource management segment of the water and waste-
water market, including municipal, industrial, and military
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clients. On November 7, 2001 American Water Services com-
pleted the acquisition of Azurix North America and Azurix
Industrials Corp. from Azurix Corp. The additional talent and
diversity of services acquired through the Azurix transaction
created a combined organization that will be able to provide a
full range of water and wastewater management services
throughout the U.S. and Canada.

With the acquisition of Azurix North America and Azurix
Industrials Corp., American Water Services has expanded its
service offerings from operations and maintenance contracts
to now provide residuals management, underground infrastruc-
ture development and engineering services. It currently man-
ages and operates 1,000 water and wastewater facilities, pro-
viding services to approximately 5 million people in 18 states
and three Canadian provinces. (including 11 which also have
communities served by our utility subsidiaries)

o Water and Wastewater Related

Products and Services
American Water Resources 1s a subsidiary formed to offer water
and wastewater related products and services to residential,
governmental or business consumers. This company which was
formed in 2000, has developed two business lines:

Consumer Protection Programs — These service pro-
grams include water line protection (for a small monthly fee
the customer’s external water line is repaired or replaced when
required) and the development of a similar service for waste-
water line protection.

American Carbon Services — This is a service provided to
water utilities that use granular activated carboen for filtration.
Rather than replace the carbon as it becomes “spent,” Ameri-
can Carbon Services regenerates it for the utility’s reuse. It is
more cost effective and has less impact on the environment.

Shared Services
American Water Works Service Company, a subsidiary, pro-
vides professional services to affiliated companies. These ser-
vices include accounting, administration, communication,
corporate secretarial, engineering, financial, human resources,
information systems, operations, rates and revenue, risk man-
agement and water quality. This arrangement, which provides
these services at cost, affords affiliated companies professional
and technical talent otherwise unavailable economically or
on a timely basis. In 2001 this subsidiary opened a national
customer service center and another facility to consolidate trea-
sury and accounting functions.

American Water Capital Corp. is a subsidiary that provides
a single source of debt capital for the Company and its utility
subsidiaries. By consolidating its financing requirements the
Company created cash management efficiencies and has ac-
cess to a broader investor base.

Merger Agreement with RWE

On September 16, 2001 the Company entered into a merger
agreement with RWE Aktiengesellschaft and Thames Water
Aqua Holdings GmbH, which is RWE’s holding company for




American Water Worlks Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

its global water business, to merge with a subsidiary of RWE
and become a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of RWE. Un-
der the terms of the merger agreement RWE will purchase all
the outstanding shares of American Water Works Company
common stock at a price of $46.00 per share in cash.

RWE is a global multi-utility company that does business
through its subsidiaries and affiliates in over 120 countries.
Its core businesses are electricity, gas, water, and waste recy-
cling. Upon completion of the transaction, American Water
will be combined with the U.S. operations of Thames Water
Plc, RWE’s London-based international water services busi-
ness. American Water will manage the joint operations in
North, Central and South America.

The transaction was approved at a special meeting of the
stockholders of American Water Works Company on January
17, 2002. Before the transaction can be completed, state and
federal regulatory approvals are required. As of the end of
January 2002, all of the applications for approval were filed
where required by slate regulatory authorities. The states where
applications for approval have been filed are Arizona, Cali-
fornia, Hawaii, Illinois, Kentucky, Maryland, New Jersey, New
Mexico, New York, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia and West
Virginia. Approval of the state public utility agencies in Geor-
gia, Indiana, lowa, Michigan, Missouri, Ohio and Texas is not
required. Regulatory approval has not been requested in Con-
necticut, Massachuseits and New Hampshire since the sale of
these operations to Kelda is pending. On February 4, 2002,
the Tennessee Regulatory Authority approved the transaction.
As aresult of the time required to complete the approval pro-
cess by the various regulatory agencies, the Company does
not anticipate completion of the merger until the first half of

2003.

Growth and Development

Acquisitions and Divestitures of Utility Systems
Consistent with the Company’s growth strategy, management
continues to search for opportunities to acquire water and
wastewater systems that represent the prospect for enhanced
shareholder value.

The year 2001 began with 22 acquisitions that were then
awaiting regulatory approval. During the year, contract nego-
tiations for 19 more acquisitions were completed. Of that total
of 41 transactions, 10 received regulatory approval and were
finalized during 2001, adding approximately 40,000 new cus-
tomers. At year-end there were 31 pending acquisitions.

The acquisitions finalized in 2001 included the purchase
of the City of Coatesville Authority’s water and wastewater
utility systems for $48.2 million. The Coatesville, Pennsylva-
nia system serves 8,600 water customers and 6,500 wastewa-
ter customers making this purchase of municipally-owned as-
sets the largest privatization project of its kind in the nation.

On January 15, 2002 the Company and its subsidiaries
completed the acquisition of all of the water and wastewater
assets of Citizens Communications Company. The purchase
price of $859 million in cash and $120 million of assumed
liabilities is subject to adjustment upon the completion of an

audited closing statement of net assets. In Arizona and Cali-
fornia, the transaction adds approximately 145,000 custom-
ers to the 111,000 customers American Water Works already
serves in these states. This strengthens the Company’s foun-
dation for continued growth in those key areas. In Illinois,
Indiana and Ohio, 60,000 customers have been added, fur-
ther expanding the Company’s already significant presence in
the Midwest. In Pennsylvania, the number of customers served
increases by 43,000. American Water Works has a significant
presence in Pennsylvania with a total of 606,000 customers.
The transaction will also expand American Water Works’ pres-
ence in the wastewater sector by more than 94,000 customers.

The Citizens acquisition provides $140 million in addi-
tional annual revenue and adds the expertise of 300 new asso-
ciates to the Company’s workforce. While this acquisition is
anticipated to dilute per share earnings by an estimated six
cents per share in 2002, it is expected to be accretive to earn-
ings within 18 to 24 months,

Excluding the Citizens acquisitions in six states, the Com-
pany had 25 water and wastewater acquisitions pending at
December 31, 2001. Once approved, those acquisitions are
expected to add 25,000 customers and provide more than $7
million in additional annual revenue.

The Company completed 12 acquisitions in 2000 that added
approximately 38,000 new customers. In 1999, 21 acquisi-
tions added approximately 518,000 new customers. The most
significant of these transactions was the acquisition of Na-
tional Enterprises Inc. (NEI), a privately owned holding com-
pany with operations primarily in the water utility business.
NEIs subsidiaries provided water utility service to more than
500,000 customers in Illinois, Indiana, Missouri and New York.
Since most of NEI's customers were in the Midwest this ac-
quisition significantly furthered the Company’s strategy of
geographic diversification. As a part of the NEI acquisition,
the Company also acquired passive investments in the tele-
communications industry.

On August 30, 2001 the Company and Kelda Group plc
jointly announced that they had reached an agreement whereby
Kelda’s Aquarion Company subsidiary would acquire the
Company’s New England operations. The transaction price is
approximately $118 million in cash plus the assumption of
$115 million in debt. The subsidiaries being sold serve a total
of 65,000 customers and had revenues of $51 million in 2001.
The sale, which is subject to regulatory approval is expected
to be consummated during the second quarter of 2002.

On September 28, 2001 the Company completed the sale
under threat of condemnation of its Salisbury Water Supply
Company subsidiary’s operating system to the Town of
Salisbury, Massachusetts for $11.5 million in cash plus out-
standing accounts receivable. The Salisbury system serves
3.000 customers and had annual revenues of $1.9 million.




Wanagement’s Discussion and Analysis

Condemnations of Utility Systems
In lllinois, the cities of Pekin and Peoria have been consider-
ing acquiring, by eminent domain or otherwise, the utility as-
sets of Illinois-American Water Company that are used to pro-
vide water service to their respective communities. [linois-
American is vigorously contesting these proposed takeovers.
In Pekin, in a November 2000 non-binding referendum,
the residents voted to retain Illinois-American’s ownership of
the water system. Another non-binding referendum on the same
question is scheduled for March 19, 2002. Illincis-American
and the City of Peoria are involved in a court proceeding over
the applicability of an 1889 franchise agreement that the city
believes grants it a unilateral right to purchase the Company’s
assets there.

Acquisitions of Unregulated Businesses

On November 7, 2001 the Company’s American Water Ser-
vices subsidiary completed the acquisition of Azurix North
America and Azurix Industrials Corp. at a purchase price of
$153.3 million in cash plus the assumption of $6.5 million in
debt. This acquisition strengthens American Water's position
as a premier provider of water resource management services
in the U.S. and Canada. The acquisition is expected to be
accretive to American Water’s earnings per share and cash
flow in its first full year.

Azurix North America was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Azurix Corp. and provides a broad range of water and waste-
water services, including operations and maintenance, engi-
neering, underground infrastructure development and residu-
als management. The company has completed projects in 41
U.S. states and Canadian provinces, employs 1,050 people
and reported revenues in 2001 of $131.5 million.

Azurix Industrials Corp., also a former subsidiary of Azurix
Corp., provides water and wastewater related technical, op-
eration and maintenance services to industrial markets. The
company reported revenues of $2.2 million for 2001.

On September 20, 2001 American Water Services pur-
chased all of Environmental Management Corporation’s inter-
est in their EA2 Systems joint venture for $4.2 million. EA2
has one water and three wastewater operations contracts in
Indiana, employs 37 people and reported revenue of $8.4 mil-
lion in 2001.

The EA2 purchase allows American Water Services to expand
their Midwest presence and provides a platform for them to offer
their full line of services in Indiana and surrounding states.

Capital Expenditures by Category

More information regarding acquisitions and divestitures is
included in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Capital Spending Program

Investment in new facilities in 2001 totaled $381 million,
which is 1% above the 2000 construction expenditures of $377
million. Construction activities planned for 2002 total approxi-
mately $500 million.

With the benefit of comprehensive engineering, operational
and financial planning, each utility subsidiary prepares a capi-
tal expenditure plan representing a balance of water quality
and source of supply initiatives, operational improvements,
system growth opportunities, regulatory compliance require-
ments, and infrastructure replacement needs. The actual ex-
penditures recorded in any given year are influenced by many
factors including the timing of required governmental approv-
als of projects, weather conditions, availability of labor re-
sources, and equipment and material deliveries. It is antici-
pated that approximately $2.5 billion will be invested in new
utility facilities in the five years ending 2006. The full invest-
ment in this prudent construction program is expected to be
recognized in regulatory decisions.

Source of supply improvements accounted for approximately
9% of construction expenditures in 2001. Projects included
the construction of new groundwater sources in Hingham,
Massachusetts; Mt. Olive Township, New Jersey; Clovis, New
Mexico; Long Island, New York; and Moshannon, Pennsylva-
nia. The source of supply in Seymour, Indiana was converted
from a surface water to a groundwater source. Significant
progress was made in the construction of a replacement in-
take tunnel for the Gary, Indiana production facility, which
accounts for the increased expenditures for this category of
plant.

Investment in water treatment and pumping facilities com-
prised about 16% of the 2001 construction expenditures. A
new treatment facility was completed in Atlantic County, New
Jersey. Significant treatment plant upgrades were completed
in Huntington, West Virginia; Norristown, Pennsylvania;
Hopewell, Virginia; and Champaign, Illinois. Additional fin-
ished water storage was provided at the Davenport, lowa and
White Deer, Pennsylvania plants. Expenditures for this cat-
egory of plant declined in 2001 reflecting the completion of
several major treatment facilities.

(000) 2000 1999 1998 1997

Water plant
Sources of supply $ 35,935 $ 16,345 $ 20,198 $ 19,744 $ 17,841
Treatment and pumping 60,736 97,301 125,072 113,725 102,011
Transmission and distribution 154,600 149,392 193,571 180,545 157,635
Services, meters and fire hydrants 67,796 68,331 70,998 69,606 64,050
General structures and equipment 41,032 31,549 49,122 48,676 39,688
Wastewater plant 8,927 5,766 3,250 4,646
Total utility plant 365,276 371,845 464,727 435,546 385,871
Nonutility property 15,883 5372 2,624 3,671 8,558
$381,159 $377.217 $467,351 $439,217 $394,429
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American Water Works Company, inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Transmission and distribution facilities accounted for ap-
proximately 41% of the 2001 construction expenditures. Sig-
nificant capital expenditures occurred across a large number
of service areas for distribution system improvements. These
projects improve existing service conditions, provide service
to new areas, and allow full utilization of existing sources of
supply and treatment facilities between neighboring systems.
Prominent projects include continuing regionalization efforts
in Jefferson County, Pennsylvania; and Kanawha, Cabell,
Fayette and Boone Counties in West Virginia. Other major
distribution/transmission projects were completed in St. Louis
County, Missouri; Scranton, Pennsylvania; and Mt. Olive Town-
ship, New Jersey to improve system hydraulics or enhance
system growth. Distribution storage tanks were constructed in
Kanawha and Fayette County, West Virginia; Mt. Olive Town-
ship, New Jersey; Davenport, lowa; Hobart, Indiana, and Gregg
and Cross Creek Townships in Pennsylvania.

Capital expenditures for nonutility property are primarily
for equipment and office space utilized by American Water
Works Service Company. The increased spending in this cat-
egory in 2001 reflects the purchase of equipment for the
Company’s new facilities that were established to consolidate
customer and financial services.

The Company’s formal planning process involves a com-
prehensive evaluation by each utility subsidiary of all aspects
of public water supply. This process includes evaluation of
source water supply reliability, adequacy of water treatment
facilities and distribution systems, and the potential for re-
gional water supply solutions and acquisitions. In 2001, Com-
prehensive Planning Studies were issued for the Baldwin Hills
service area in California; the Streator, Lincoln and Sterling
service areas in 1llinois; the Warren County, Hunterdon County,
Morris County and Logan service areas in New Jersey; the
Pike County, Monroe County, and New Castle service areas in
Pennsylvania; and the Gassaway/Sutton, Weston, Mercer/Sum-
mers County, and Webster Springs service areas in West Vir-
ginia. Studies are underway for subsidiaries in Illinois, Indi-
ana, Kentucky, Massachusetts, New Jersey, New York, Penn-
sylvania, Virginia and West Virginia. These continuing stud-
ies encompass 30 service areas.

Environmental Compliance

The American Water System’s policy is to be in total compli-
ance with all environmental regulations, including drinking
water rules. The Company’s compliance record is outstanding
and our commitment goes beyond just compliance. For ex-
ample, compliance with drinking water health standards in
2001 was 100% for the regulated utility subsidiaries and
99.99% for the systems managed by American Water Services.
Also, the American Water System continues to be a leader in
achieving the more stringent standards contained in the vol-
untary U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Partner-
ship for Safe Water with 55 Awards.

Numerous federal drinking water regulations have been in
place in the U.S. since 1974 when the Safe Drinking Water

Act required national health standards. That Act was most
recently amended in 1996, requiring additional standards to
be set by EPA, which is continuing to implement that Con-
gressional mandate. In 2001, EPA adopted a limit for arsenic
effective in 2006 at 10 parts per billion, one-fifth the present
limit. A limited number of utility subsidiaries will need to
install treatment to meet this limit, so studies, and design will
begin in 2002 to phase the investment in over time. Disinfec-
tion byproduct limits were lowered in 1998, and take effect in
2002. Also, more stringent surface water treatment perfor-
mance standards become effective in 2002. The utility sub-
sidiaries’ operating systems are already in compliance with
these more stringent standards.

In 2002, EPA is expected to finalize regulations to limit
radon, to control the recycling of filter backwash water, and to
disinfect certain vulnerable ground waters. The agency also
plans to propose a new regulation to assure high quality water
during pipeline distribution by controlling cross connections,
to require greater disinfection of surface waters and to further
lower disinfection byproduct limits by 2008. Removal of ra-
don will be necessary at a few utility subsidiary sites by the
deadline of 2007, since most states are expected to adopt the
alternate plan to reduce indoor air radon levels, and only re-
quire ground waters with exiremely high radon to be treated.
The filter backwash recycling rule is only expected to impact
one utility subsidiary site, which has until 2006 to comply.
The ground water disinfection rule will have virtually no im-
pact since the American Water System disinfects voluntarily
at all but one site now. The distribution system protection rule
will likely not impact capital needs, but will increase opera-
tion costs at some sites to conduct the required protection pro-
gram. Greater disinfection of surface waters will likely result
in installation of UV for some systems, and lowering of
byproducts will require some improvements to treatment fa-
cilities and increase operating costs, but these will not be
needed for the next several years.

The record for other environmental compliance further dem-
onstrates American’s commitment to compliance and environ-
mental protection. Waste residuals generated at drinking wa-
ter and wastewater treatment plants are properly disposed, in
compliance with permits. Discharges to streams comply with
permit limits, and full disclosure is made if a violation occurs.
For many drinking water treatment plants, the residuals are
being approved for beneficial use on farms, roadways, and in
composting operations, thereby reducing the disposal costs
and preserving valuable landfill capacity. This practice will
continue into the future. All chemicals are handled in the ap-
propriate manner to prevent exposure to employees, and to
prevent accidental releases to the environment. If such re-
lease occurs, the proper government agencies are immediately
notified, per regulation, and the material cleaned up.

The American Water System has been involved in all
rulemaking, and has provided its operating knowledge and
cost estimates to the health authorities so as to assist them in
making the proper decision to protect public health and the
environment at the lowest cost impact. The Company contin-
ues to be an active participant in the EPA regulatory develop-
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ment process, and has even hosted expert workshops at its
Corporate headquarters to share our knowledge with the EPA.

The future holds more stringent regulation. The American
Water System will continue to be actively following and as-
sisting EPA in the development of those regulations, consis-
tent with its policy to protect its drinking water consumers,
and the environment. Any increased costs to the regulated
utility subsidiaries to comply with these new mandates are
expected to be recovered in rates, because the cost reflects
better customer service and better environmental protection.

Utility Regulation

Twenty-one state commissions regulate the Company’s utility
subsidiaries. They have broad authority to establish rates for
service, prescribe service standards, review and approve rules
and regulations and, in most instances, they must approve long-
term financing programs, transactions between the utility and
affiliated interests, reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions
prior to their completion. The jurisdiction exercised by each
commission is prescribed by state legislation and therefore
varies from state to state.

Economic regulation deals with many competing, and of-
ten conflicting, public interests and policy goals. Rate ad-
justment proceedings normally are initiated by the utility. Af-
ter appropriate investigation by commission staff and interve-
nors, public hearings are held. These hearings, which are eco-
nomic and service quality fact-finding proceedings, are typi-
cally conducted in a trial-like setting where evidence is sub-
mitted, subject to cross examination, which then forms the
basis for a commission decision. The purpose of this regula-
tory process is to set rates that will cover the reasonable oper-
ating costs of providing guality service to customers and which
will also allow the utility the opportunity to earn a fair return
on the investment necessary to provide that service. A rate
proceeding generally focuses on four areas:

© The amount of investment in facilities which provide
public service

o The operating costs and taxes associated with providing
the service

o The capital costs for the funds used to provide the
facilities

o The tariff design which allocates revenue requirements
equitably across the customer base

The regulatory rate setting process is time-consuming. Af-
ter considering the time required to complete the regulatory
process, the utility subsidiaries file for rate adjustments that
will reflect as closely as possible the cost of providing service
during the time new rates are intended to be effective. Man-
agement pursues methods of offsetting any adverse financial
impact of regulatory lag and a number of approaches have
proven successful in achieving this result. For example, at
least 12 states employ some form of forward looking test year,
such as a future test year or recognition of known and measur-
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able changes for some period beyond a historic test year. Such
mechanisms result in rates that are more reflective of costs
that are likely to be incurred during the period the rates will
be in effect. In addition, six subsidiaries have received rate
orders allowing recovery of interest and depreciation expense
related to the interim period from the time a major construction
project is placed in service until new rates reflecting the cost
of the project are placed into effect. Six subsidiaries also now
recover in rates a return on utility plant before it is in service
instead of capitalizing an allowance for funds used during con-
struction. Ten subsidiaries have implemented staged rate in-
creases over several years, reflecting additional annual invest-
ments and expenses approximately when they are incurred
and reducing the frequency of general rate increase requests.
Through legislation or administrative rulemaking, four
states allow utilities to recover certain costs of distribution
system infrastructure replacement without the necessity of fil-
ing a full rate proceeding. Since distribution system infrastruc-
ture replacement is a significant element of capital expendi-
tures made by subsidiaries, such programs can reduce regu-
latory lag and increase the time between full rate cases.
Additionally, eight regulatory jurisdictions permit forms of
rate design known as single tariff pricing. This is a concept
which sets similar rates for service to customers of subsidiaries
with multiple service districts. It allows simplification of ad-
ministration, and reduces the complexity of rate proceedings.
This concept also spreads fixed costs over a larger customer
base and helps to mitigate adverse rate impacts to custormers
resulting from necessary capital improvements, while permit-
ting flexibility in the timing of utility subsidiary financing.

Rate Case Activity

During the past year, and through January of 2002, regulatory
commissions authorized 11 subsidiaries to increase rates for
service by an annual amount of $46.3 million. The primary
driving force for price increases was to obtain a return on the
additional capital investment in essential water service facili-
ties. This has been the case for a number of years and will
continue to be the situation for the foreseeable future, as a
result of the ongoing need for additional capital investments
to reinforce and replace water utility infrastructure and to com-
ply with increasing water quality requirements.

On January 1, 2001, California-American Water Company
placed into effect an increase of $1.1 million in additional
annual revenue for the Coronado Division to offset the increase
in cost of purchased water. On March 15, 2001, the California
Public Utility Commission (CPUC) approved a settlement for
the Los Angeles Division granting an annual increase of $.9
million in 2001.

In November 2001, the CPUC initiated a rulemaking pro-
ceeding and instituted interim procedures which alter exist-
ing methods for treating balancing accounts and offsettable
expenses. Previously, regulated companies were allowed to
adjust rates outside of the context of a general rate case for
certain costs, such as purchased water and purchased power,
through the use of balancing accounts and offsets to rates.
The interim procedures and new rulemaking would make such
recovery mechanisms unavailable unless the utility demon-
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strates it is in compliance with its rate case filing cycle and
not earning in excess of a Commission approved pro forma
return on equity. Because California-American has in the past
complied with these provisions when seeking balancing ac-
count or offset recovery, it is unlikely that establishing such
requirements through a formal rulemaking will have a signifi-
cant adverse impact on the Company.

On February 15, 2001, the Hlinois-American Water Com-
pany received an order from the Illinois Commerce Commis-
sion approving additional revenues in the amount of $7.2 mil-
lion on an annual basis.

The lowa Regulatory Utilities Board entered an order on
July 16, 2001 granting Towa-American Water Company an in-
terim increase in the amount of $1.9 million. lowa-American
then negotiated a settlement agreement effective on August
20, 2001 providing for a total increase of $2.0 million. The
settlement allowed implementation of new permanent rates
six months prior to the statutory date of February 2002 and
did not require a refund of any portion of the interim increase.

Kentucky-American Water Company was awarded an in-
crease in annual revenues of $2.2 million, effective Decem-
ber 12, 2000. The Kentucky Public Service Commission sub-
sequently granted a petition for rehearing the Company had
filed regarding a number of issues. On May 9, 2001, the Com-
mission issued a Rehearing Order awarding the Company ad-
ditional revenues of $397,000. The May Rehearing Order also
reversed the Commission’s earlier denial of an acquisition
adjustment related to the company’s purchase of the
Boonesboro Water Association, allowing partial recovery of
the acquisition adjustment in view of the Commission’s desire
to support regionalization.

Missouri-American Water Company filed an application for
additional revenues on June 23, 2000, which included a pro-
posal to fund a long-term infrastructure replacement project.
The Missouri Public Service Commission staff recommended
a decrease from existing revenues of $9.5 million. Staff pro-
posed departure from normal ratemaking practice related to
calculating depreciation expense, and also opposed the
company’s proposed infrastructure replacement program. On
May 3, 2001, the Commission issued an order granting a rate
increase of $5.2 million or 5.4%. The order rejected staff’s
propased approach to calculating depreciation accruals but
denied the Company’s request for funding an infrastructure
replacement program as well as certain deferrals related to
infrastructure replacement. It also denied recovery of certain
costs related to the acquisition of the NEI properties. A num-
ber of these issues are currently on appeal to the Missouri
courts.

In a separate order effective February 20, 2001, Missouri-
American was allowed to implement a surcharge to recover
annually $700,000 of property taxes associated with its St.
Joseph treatment plant.

On March 5, 2001 West Virginia-American Water Com-
pany filed a rate case seeking recognition of $53.7 million in
increased investment in utility plant. On December 21, 2001,
the West Virginia Public Service Commission approved an
increase in revenues of $4.6 million on an annual basis effec-
tive for service rendered on and after December 31, 2001.

Additional Annual Revenues Authorized by Rate Decisions

(000) 2001 2000 1999
Arizona $ - 9 - § 8N
California 1,979 2,481 780
Connecticut - 2,628 -
lliinois 7,183 - -
Indiana - - 14,219
lowa 2,038 - -
Kentucky 397 2,171 -
Maryland - - 360
Massachusetts 1,173 - -
Michigan 70 - -
Missouri 5,860 10,233 -
New Hampshire 202 545 -
New Jersey - - 13,083
New York - 539 100
Ohio - 1,310 -
Pennsyivania - 780 24,600
Virginia - 936 776
West Virginia 4,552 5,561 4,522

$23,450  $27,184  $59,251

Pennsylvania-American Water Company filed a request on
April 27, 2001 to increase rates, that was primarily driven by
an increased plant investment of $250 million since the pre-
vious rate case. The final order of the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission granted an increase of $24 million effec-
tive January 25, 2002.

In addition to the order received in Pennsylvania, three
other orders granting a total of $2.0 million in additional an-
nual revenues were received during the first two months of
2002. At March 1, 2002 two applications requesting addi-
tional annual revenues of $13.2 million were awaiting regula-
tory decisions. One of these cases, a $12.7 million request by
Indiana-American, is anticipated to be concluded by the
middle of 2002. The Company plans additional filings in 2002,
including two related 1o the recent Citizens acquisition. Ap-
proximately $132 million in capital expenditures necessary
to ensure the delivery of high quality water is not reflected in
current rates for the former Citizens customers. In some in-
stances, rates have not been adjusted for six years. Plans are
in place to move forward in a timely manner to request rate
increases needed to recover those capital costs.

Citizens Acquisition

On October 15, 1999, the company entered into an agree-
ment lo acquire all of the water and wastewater assets of Citi-
zens Communications Company. The transaction called for
the Company’s utility subsidiaries to acquire the water and
wastewater assets of Citizens and its subsidiaries in Arizona,
California, Illinois, Indiana, Ohio and Pennsylvania. Regula-
tory agencies in all six states approved the acquisition of Citi-
zens water and wastewater assets. The transaction closed on
January 15, 2002.

In no states will the rates be increased to support this trans-
action. This acquisition will allow the company to obtain sav-
ings that would otherwise not be possible. The benefit of these
savings will be shared with the ratepayer through a reduction
in future rate increases.
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Security

After the tragic events of September 11, 2001, the regulated
utility subsidiaries reviewed existing security measures and
took appropriate additional action to protect these essential
supply, treatment, and distribution facilities and service to
customers. The Company incurred $7.4 million of incremen-
tal operating expenses after September 11 to increase secu-
rity, of which $7.1 million was deferred as a regulatory asset
pending future recovery in rates. In addition, $16.3 million of
additional security related capital expenditures were made that
will increase rate base in future rate proceedings. The utility
subsidiaries have developed and are implementing strategies
to obtain timely recovery of the increased costs associated with
enhanced security measures. These strategies differ based on
the particular circumstances in each state. Generally, how-
ever, cost recovery mechanisms include seeking recovery in
pending rate proceedings, the use of surcharge mechanisms,
or deferral of security related costs for recovery in subsequent
rate proceedings. In all states, companies are taking appro-
priate proactive measures to protect the confidentiality of se-
curity related information in the regulatory process. Two states,
Pennsylvania and New Jersey have established taskforces for
the purpose of addressing public utility security issues, in-
cluding protection of sensitive security related information and
appropriate cost recovery. Pennsylvania-American and New
Jersey-American are both participants in these processes in
their respective states.

Business Services Projects

During 2001 the Company continued the consolidation of its
various customer service centers and financial services op-
erations.

The new national customer service center in Alton, Iltinois
that began operation in the second quarter of 2001 will in-
crease the Company’s current focus on high quality customer
service. This center can be more cost-effectively staffed and
equipped to provide a higher level of service than can cur-
rently be provided with the numerous existing centers. The
process of transitioning the customer service operations of the
utility subsidiaries to the new center will be completed in 2003.

In the third quarter of 2001 a new shared services center
in Mt. Laurel, New Jersey began to assume responsibility for
various accounting, treasury and human resources activities.
The process of transitioning the utility subsidiaries to the new
center was completed in January 2002. The shared services
center will improve the Company’s financial processes, reduce
costs, and allow the operating subsidiaries to focus on provid-
ing utility service.

The utility subsidiaries are implementing strategies to se-
cure recovery of the $36.3 million of one-time business pro-
cess reengineering costs associated with the consolidation ini-
tiative that were deferred as a regulatory asset at December
31, 2001. Such costs were included and allowed in recent rate
cases for Pennsylvania-American and West Virginia-Ameri-
can. Indiana-American included the one-time costs in its pend-
ing rate proceeding which has net yet concluded. Special fil-
ings seeking authority to defer these costs for later recovery
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have been made by utility subsidiaries in Kentucky, New York
and Hawaii and these proceedings are pending. The New
Mexico Commission has approved deferral. For the other regu-
lated utility subsidiaries no special authority is required to
defer the one-time costs and the companies are doing so for
anticipated recovery in a later rate proceeding.

In addition to the one-time costs associated with
reengineering business processes, $10.8 million has been in-
vested to equip these two new centers. The cost of consolidat-
ing and enhancing these services is expected to be fully offset
by reduced operating expenses, resulting in no impact on cus-
tomers’ rates.

Critical Accounting Policies

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71 “Account-
ing for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (SFAS 71)
sets forth the application of generally accepted accounting
principles for those companies whose rates are established by
or are subject to approval by an independent third-party regu-
lator. Under SFAS 71, the regulated utility subsidiaries defer
costs and credits on the balance sheet as regulatory assets
and liabilities when it is probable that those costs and credits
will be recognized in the rate-making process in a period dif-
ferent from the period in which they would have been reflected
in income by an unregulated company. These deferred regu-
latory assets and liabilities are then reflected in the income
statement in the period in which the same amounts are re-
flected in the rates charged for service.

The utility subsidiaries have incurred various costs and
received various credits which have been reflected as regula-
tory assets and liabilities on their balance sheets. Accounting
for such costs as regulatory assets in accordance with SFAS
71 is based on management’s judgments that it is probable
that future revenue in an amount at least equal to the capital-
ized cost will result from inclusion of that cost in allowable
costs for rate-making purposes. Similar judgment is required
to assess when credits should be recorded as an obligation to
the utility company’s customers.

The disallowance of recovery of a previously deferred cost
in a rate proceeding would result in a charge to income in-that
period, as would the imposition of a previously unrecorded
liability to the company’s customers. In addition, a previously
deferred cost must be immediately expensed if in
management’s judgment it no longer meets the probable fu-
ture recovery standard.

More information about the regulatory assets and liabili-
ties recorded by the utility subsidiaries can be found in Note
2 to the financial statements.

Revenue from many of American Water Services’ contracts
are recognized over the contract term based on the percentage
of costs incurred during the period compared to the total esti-
mated costs to be incurred over the entire contract. These cost
estimates reflect the judgment of management. Losses on con-
tracts are recognized during the period in which the loss first
becomes known. Revenue recognized in excess of billings on
service contracts are recorded as unbilled revenue. Billings
in excess of revenues recognized on service contracts are re-
corded as a liability on the Company’s balance sheet until the
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above revenue recognition criteria are met. Changes in con-
tract performance and related estimated contract profitability
may result in revisions to costs and revenues and are recog-
nized in the period in which revisions to previous estimates of
management are determined.

Results of Operations

The Company’s experience in assessing the impact of infla-
tion on its business indicates that with timely rate increases
authorized by regulators, revenue will likely keep pace with
inflation. Inflation did not significantly impact the Company’s
financial position or results of operations in 1999 through 2001,
and it is not expected to materially affect 2002 results.

Consolidated Results

The resulis of operations for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 reflect the operations of American Water Ser-
vices which was formed when the Company acquired its joint
venture partner’s 50 percent interest in AmericanAnglian
Environmental Technologies on December 31, 1999. Prior to
January 1, 2000 the results of operations of the Company’s
former contract management business joint venture were ac-
counted for under the equity method. The operating results of
Azurix North America and Azurix Industrials Corp. have been
included in the consolidated statement of income since the
completion of the acquisition on November 7, 2001.

(000) 2009 2000 1999
Revenues $1,438,887 $1,350,590 $1,260,857
Operating expenses 979,293 894,412 841,263
Operating income 459,594 456,178 419,594
RWE and NEI merger expenses (9,992) - (20,535)
Gain from sale of Salishury system 4,820 - -
Other income (deductions), net (182,618) (189,811} (168,710)
Income before income taxes 271,807 266,367 230,349
Income taxes 110,324 105,306 91,400
Net income 161,483 161,061 138,949
Dividends on preferred stocks 784 3,700 3,984
Net income to common stock 160,899 157,361 134,965
Other comprehensive income

(loss), net (19,345) (67,158) 59,323
Comprehensive income $ 141,554 § 90,203 $ 194,288
Net income to common stock $ 160,899 § 157,361 § 134,965
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.61 § 161 § 1.40

Revenues

Revenues of $1.439 billion in 2001 were 7% above those for
2000. While overall total sales volume increased slightly, in-
dustrial sales decreased by 2.2 billion gallons due to a down-
turn in the economy. Timely rate increases, the addition of
40,000 customers and the Azurix acquisition all contributed
to revenue growth.

Revenues for 2000 increased 7% from the amount recorded
in 1999. Contract management revenues from American Wa-
ter Services accounted for almost half of this revenue increase.
The remainder of the increase resulted from rate increases
and the addition of 65,000 customers through acquisitions and

growth in existing service territories. These growth factors
served to offset a sales volume decrease caused by abnormal
summer weather conditions.

Operating Expenses

Operation and maintenance expenses grew by 10% in 2001 to
$664.5 million. The Azurix acquisition accounted for more
than a third of this increase. Increased transition costs that
the Company incurred as it completes various consolidation
efforts also contributed to this increase.

The 6% increase in operation and maintenance expense in
2000 was solely due to the inclusion of American Water Ser-
vices’ expenses in consolidated operations for the first time.

Operating expenses include depreciation and general taxes,
which totaled $185.2 million and $129.5 million in 2001, re-
spectively. Construction projects, completed by the company’s
utility subsidiaries, were the principal reason for increases in
depreciation expense and the property tax portion of general

taxes in both 2001 and 2000.

Other Income (Deductions)

Interest expense, the primary component of other income (de-
ductions) rose slightly to $192.5 million in 2001 compared to
2000. Interest expense in 2001 associated with an increase in
long and short-term debt, was for the most part offset by lower
interest rates. This expense had increased by 8% in 2000.
due to increased borrowings.

The total allowance for funds used during construction
(AFUDC) recorded by the utility subsidiaries in 2001 was $8.9
million compared to $13.7 million in 2000 and $22.4 million
in 1999.

Merger expenses incurred in connection with the RWE
acquisition in 2001, primarily investment banking and legal
fees, totaled $10.0 million in 2001. The $20.5 million of merger
costs in 1999 that were incurred in connection with the NEI
merger included severance costs as well as vesting of certain
benefits, professional fees, and other costs.

The sale of water assets serving the City of Salisbury, Mas-
sachusetts resulted in a 2001 pre-tax gain of $4.8 million.

Other income in 2001 reflects a $5.2 million pre-tax gain
from the sale of a portion of the Company’s investment in
Deutsche Telekom.

Other income deductions in 2000 reflect $4.5 million of
one-time charges related to two adverse rate orders. Other in-
come deductions in 1999 include the Company’s share of losses
at its former AmericanAnglian Environmental Technologies
contract management joint venture.

Income Taxes

Income taxes increased by 5% to $110.3 million in 2001, fol-
lowing a 15% increase in 2000. The Company’s effective in-
come tax rate increased to 40.6% in 2001 from 39.5% in 2000,
reflecting the fact that it is not probable that the $10.0 million
of RWE merger expenses related to investment banking and
legal fees incurred in 2001 will be deductible for tax purposes.
Income tax expense in 1999 reflects the decrease in taxable
income primarily related to tax deductible severance and in-
tegration costs incurred in connection with the NEI merger.
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Net Income to Common Stock

Net income to common stock in 2001 was $160.9 million, com-
pared to net income to common stock of $157.4 million in
2000 and $135.0 million in 1999. Excluding the impact of the
RWE and NEI merger costs and the gain on the sale of the
Salisbury assets, net income to common stock was $168.0
million in 2001 compared to $157.4 million in 2000 and
$147.9 million in 1999.

Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income reflected a net loss of $19.3 mil-
lion in 2001, compared to a net loss of $67.2 million in 2000
and a net gain of $59.3 million in 1999. The Company’s other
comprehensive income represents the after tax unrealized gain/
loss on passive investments in publicly traded companies. The
most significant holdings are in Deutsche Telekom and 1TC/
\DeltaCom, Inc., two investment telecommunications firms ac-
quired in the merger with NEI, and an investment in SJW Corp.

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income was $141.6 million in 2001 compared
to $90.2 million in 2000 and $194.3 million in 1999.

Earnings per Share

Diluted earnings per share in 2001 were $1.61, which equalled
earnings per share in 2000. Earnings per share reported in
1999 were $1.40. Excluding the impact of the RWE and NEI
merger costs and the gain on the sale of the Salisbury assets,
diluted earnings per share in 2001 were §1.69, compared with
to $1.61 in 2000 and $1.53 in 1999.

Segment Reporting

The Company has identified Regulated Utility Services and
Unregulated Services as its two reportable segments. Prior to
the November 2001 acquisition of Azurix North America and
Azurix Industrials Corp. the Company’s unregulated opera-
tions had not been reflected as a reportable segment due to
their limited scope and impact on the financial results of the
Company. The results of operations reported by segment in-
clude costs allocated by American Water Works Service Com-
pany. Corporate costs of American Water Works Company are
not allocated to its subsidiaries, and are not reflected in the
results of operations reported by segment.

Regulated Utility Services

The Regulated Utility Services segment includes 26 subsid-
iaries that provide water and wastewater services to 10 mil-
lion people in 23 states. All of these companies are subject to
both federal and state regulation regarding the quality of wa-
ter distributed and the discharge of waste residuals. With the
exception of one company that serves 4,000 customers, the
utility subsidiaries also function under economic regulations
prescribed by state regulatory commissions. A subsidiary
which owns a treatment plant in Massachusetts that is leased
to an affiliated utility subsidiary is also included in this seg-
ment.
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Revenues

Revenues for 2001 increased 5% or almost $67 million, to
$1.377 billion from the $1.310 billion recorded in 2000. The
increase resulted from timely rate increases and the addition
of 40,000 customers, offset by sales volume losses in indus-
trial water sales. The total volume of water sold increased 1%
to 344.4 billion gallons in 2001 compared with 2000.

Rate authorizations adjusted the water service rates in ef-
fect for nine utility subsidiaries during 2001. These authori-
zations are expected to increase annual revenues by $23.5
million. Operating revenues for 2001 included approximately
$15.1 million that resulted from these rate orders.

Revenues of $1.310 billion in 2000 were 4% above those
for 1999. Ten utility subsidiaries received rate orders in 2000,
authorizing increases in annual revenues aggregating $27.2
million. Operating revenues for 2000 included approximately
$8.9 million which resulted from these rate orders. The 341.1
billion gallons of water sold in 2000 was 1% less than sales in
1999.

While it is still too early in 2002 to determine if there will
be any impact, drought warnings and advisories have already
been issued in some states. These initial steps may lead to
water use restrictions and reduced water sales during the re-
mainder of the year if adequate rain or snowfall does not re-
plenish supplies.

Percentage of Regulated Utility Service Revenues by Customer Class
2001 2000 1999

Residential 58.6% 58.0% 58.2%
Commercial 21.0% 21.2% 20.8%
Industrial 5.8% 6.3% 6.2%
Public and other 11.5% 11.7% 11.9%
Other water revenues 1.2% 0.9% 1.0%
Water service 98.1% 98.1% 98.1%
Wastewater service 1.9% 1.9% 1.9%

100.0%  100.0%  100.0%

Residential Revenue

Residential water service revenues in 2001 amounted to $806.2
million, an increase of 6% over those for 2000. This 2001
revenue improvement followed an increase of 4% in 2000.
The volume of water sold to residential customers increased
by 3% in 2001 to 176.7 billion gallons. The average unit price
of residential water increased by 3% in 2001 and by 6% in
2000.

Commercial Revenue

Revenues from commercial customers in 2001 rose by 4% to
$289.0 million, following an increase of 6% in 2000. Com-
mercial customers purchased 82.7 billion gallons of water in
2001, slightly more than in 2000. The average unit price of
commercial water increased by 3% in 2001 and by 5% in
2000.

Industrial Revenue
Industrial water use of 44.2 billion gallons in 2001 was 5%
less than in 2000 reflecting the downturn in the economy.
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Revenues from industrial sales of $79.5 million in 2001 were
4% below those recorded in 2000 and the average unit price
of water increased 1%. In 2000, revenues from industrial sales
were 6% above those for 1999 and the average unit price of
water increased by 5%.

Public and Other Revenue

Public and other revenues in 2001 increased by 4% to $159.2
million following an increase of 3% in 2000. Revenues de-
rived from municipal governments for fire protection services
and customers requiring special private fire service facilities
totaled $63.9 million in 2001, exceeding 2000 revenue from
these customers by 2%. The 40.8 billion gallons of water sold
to governmental entities and resale customers in 2001 was
equal to the quantities sold in 2000. Revenues generated by
these sales in 2001 totaled $95.3 million and exceeded 2000
revenues by 5%.

Percentage of Water Sales (Gallans by Customer Class)

2001 2000 1999

Residential 51.3% 50.3% 50.9%
Commercial 24.0% 24.1% 23.8%
industrial 12.8% 13.6% 13.3%
Public and other 11.9% 12.0% 12.0%
100.0%  100.0%  100.0%

Wastewater Service Revenue

Utility subsidiaries provided wastewater service in Hawaii and
to portions of the Company’s service areas in New Jersey, Penn-
sylvania, Indiana, Missouri and Kentucky. Revenues from
these services amounted to $26.5 in 2001, $24.4 million in
2000 and $24.5 million in 1999. The growth in wastewater
revenues in 2001 reflects the acquisition of the operations of
Coatesville in Pennsylvania.

Regulated Utility Service Operating Expenses

(000) 2001 2000 1999

Operation and
maintenance expenses

Depreciation and
amortization

General taxes

$595,3871 $551,443 $552,398

178,120 162,182 150,945
125,608 122,282 120,485
$829,709 $835,907 $823,828

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses in 2001 increased by 8% to $899.7 mil-
lion, following a 1% increase in 2000.

Operation and maintenance expenses totaled $596.0 mil-
lion in 2001, 8% higher than in 2000. Operation and mainte-
nance expenses had decreased slightly in 2000.

Associate-related costs include wage and salary, group in-
surance, and pension expense. These costs, representing 40%
of operation and maintenance expenses, increased 5% in 2001
after a 5% decrease in 2000.

The primary components of associate-related costs are
wages and salaries, which were up 2% to $196.3 million in
2001 following a 3% decrease in 2000.

Group insurance expense, which includes the cost of pro-
viding current health care and life insurance benefits as well
as the expected cost of providing postretirement benefits, in-
creased by 6% to $42.6 million in 2001 after a 3% decrease
in 2000. The increased group insurance expense in 2001 re-
flects higher group insurance premiums for active associates.
The cost accrued for postretirement benefits in 2001 increased
due to lower than expected returns on plan assets and a de-
crease in the discount rate actuarial assumption.
Postretirement benefit plan costs had decreased in 2000 due
to an increase in the discount rate actuarial assumption.

Pension expense was $2.0 million in 2001 compared to
pension income of $3.8 million in 2000, reflecting lower than
expected returns on plan assets and a settlement gain in 2000
in connection with the purchase of non-participating annuity
contracts to cover vested benefits of certain retirees that had
previously been provided through an immediate participation
guarantee contract. The purchase of non-participating annu-
ity contracts allowed the Company to terminate a restrictive
contract with an insurance company and is expected to in-
crease the long-term investment return on plan assets. As a
result of the purchase of the annuity contracts, the Company
remeasured its pension assets and pension benefit obligation,
which resulted in the pension settlement gain. Pension ex-
pense also decreased in 2000 due to an increase in the dis-
count rate actuarial assumption. Pension expense in excess of
the amount contributed to the pension plans is deferred by
certain regulated subsidiaries pending future recovery in rates
charged for water services as contributions are made to the
plans. These subsidiaries have recorded their portion of the
settlement gain as a reduction of the regulatory asset.

At December 31, 2001 the Company lowered the discount
rate assumption used for its pension and postretirement ben-
efit plans to reflect current high-quality corporate bond yields.
This change, and anticipated increases in the cost of medical
claims, are expected to result in increased benefit plan ex-
pense in 2002. More information regarding the Company’s
benefit plans is included in Note 8 to the financial statements.

Regulated Utility Service Operation and Maintenance Expenses

(000} 2001 2000 1999
Associate-related costs $240,919 $229,561 $242,674
Fuel and power 52,941 48,932 48,559
Purchased water 54,230 47 867 45,404
Chemicals 25,029 22,040 22,749
Waste disposal 18,633 17,284 16,137
Maintenance materials

and services

36,582 37,211 39,152
Operating supplies and services 111,401 101,603 95,900
Customer billing and accounting 32,098 27,513 26,168
Other 24,148 19,432 15,655
$595,981 $551,443 §$552,398
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Expenses associated with the collection, treatment, and
pumping of water include the cost of fuel and power, water
purchased from other suppliers, chemicals for water treatment
and purification, and waste disposal. These production costs
increased by 11% in 2001 after a 2% rise in 2000. The cost
increase in 2001 reflects higher purchased water and energy
expense. The unit cost of water produced was up 6% in 2001
after a 4% increase in 2000.

Operating supplies and services include the day-to-day
expenses of office operation, legal and other professional ser-
vices, as well as information systems and other office equip-
ment rental charges. These costs increased by 10% in 2001
after a 6% increase in 2000. The expenses in this category in
1999 included $5.6 million of costs connected with the take-
over attempts of the Company’s operations in Chattanooga,
Tennessee and Peoria, Illinois.

Customer billing and accounting expenses increased by
17% in 2001 and by 5% in 2000. The increase in 2001 re-
flects additional costs incurred in conjunction with the transi-
tion to a centralized customer service operation. These dupli-
cative costs will subside as the transition to the new center is
completed.

Other operation and maintenance expenses include casu-
alty and liability insurance premiums and regulatory costs.
These expenses increased by 24% in 2001 after increasing by
249 in 2000. The large increases in 2001 and 2000 were due
to an increase in insurance claims. Insurance expense is ex-
pected to increase in 2002, v

Depreciation and amortization increased by 10% in 2001
and 7% in 2000. The higher depreciation expense in both years
was primarily due to growth in utility plant in service includ-
ing major new treatment plants in Alton, Illinois and St. Jo-
seph, Missouri.

General taxes, which include gross receipts, franchise,
property, capital stock, payroll and other taxes, increased by
3% in 2001 after a 1% rise in 2000. Gross receipts and fran-
chise taxes that are a function of revenues, increased by 4%
in 2000. Property and capital stock taxes are assessed on the
basis of tax values assigned to assets and capitalization and
these taxes in 2001 were 15% above those in 2000. These
taxes had increased by 4% in 2000.

Other Income and Income Deductions

Interest expense rose 1% to $173.2 million compared to $172.2
million in 2000. This expense had increased by 7% in 2000.
The increases can be attributed primarily to an increase in
total debt, the effect of which was offset in 2001 by lower in-
terest rates.

The total allowance for funds used during construction
(AFUDC) recorded in 2001 was $8.9 million, compared to
$13.7 million in 2000 and $22.4 million in 1999. The de-
creased amounts of AFUDC recorded reflect the completion
of several major projects to construct new water service facili-
ties. The utility subsidiaries record AFUDC to the extent per-
mitted by the regulatory authorities.

The sale of water assets serving the City of Salisbury, Mas-
sachusetts resulted in a 2001 pre-tax gain of $4.8 million.
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Other income deductions in 2000 reflect $4.5 million of
one-time charges related to rate orders received in Missouri
and Kentucky. The most significant of these charges was re-
lated to the Missouri Publie Service Commission’s decision to
deny recognition of certain investments in the former treat-
ment plant the Company deemed essential to provide water
service while a new treatment plant was being constructed.
An appeal of the Kentucky order was partially successful in
2001, and an appeal of the Missouri order is pending.

Unregulated Services
The Unregulated Services segment includes American Water
Services and its subsidiaries and American Water Resources.

The mission of American Water Services is to provide a broad
range of water and wastewater services throughout the United
States and Canada. With the acquisition of Azurix North
America and Azurix Industrials Corp. in 2001 American Wa-
ter Services has enhanced its capability to provide operations
and maintenance, residual, underground infrastructure and
engineering services.

The Company intends to be a key player within the full-
service water and wastewater management market. The abil-
ity of American Water Services to be competitive and to ac-
tively participate in this market’s growth is significantly en-
hanced by American Water Works Company’s presence in the
United States regulated utility market. American Water Ser-
vices is the fourth largest operations and maintenance con-
tractor in the United States. It currently manages and oper-
ates 1,000 water and wastewater facilities in eighteen states
and three Canadian provinces.

Approximately one-half of American Water Services’ rev-
enues are derived from contract management services. This
business is highly competitive, and contracts are usually
awarded for a period of at least five years. Management judg-
ment is required to forecast costs that the Company’s bids will
be based on.

The other half of American Water Services’ revenues are
derived from residuals management, underground infrastruc-
ture development and engineering service contracts. These
revenues are based primarily on contracts with terms from three
to nine months and are awarded on a bid basis.

American Water Resources currently offers a consumer pro-
tection program where for a monthly fee a residential customer’s
external water line is repaired or replaced when required.
American Water Resources also provides a service to regen-
erate granular activated carbon that is used by water utilities
in the filtration process. In addition, this subsidiary leases
equipment and office space to affiliated companies.

Operating Revenues

Revenues from unregulated services totaled $69.2 million in
2001 compared to $47.0 million in 2000. The majority of this
increase is directly related to the acquisitions of Azurix and
EA2. The increase in revenues also reflects recognition of the
partial year revenues of new contracts awarded in 2001, gen-
eral Consumer Price Index increases to existing contracts
throughout the year in accordance with contract terms, and
revenues from the water line protection program.
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During 2001 American Water Services was awarded con-
tracts in East Palo Alto, California; Houston, Texas; London,
Ontario; Camp Creek, Georgia and Coral Springs, Florida that
are expected to result in total future revenues of $158 million.
In addition American Water Services renewed contracts at
Dedham, Massachusetts; Avalon, New Jersey; Poconos, Penn-
sylvania; Moore County, North Carolina and Cohasset, Massa-
chusetts with total future revenue of $23.4 million.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased to $72.7 million in 2001 from
$48.5 million in 2000. The majority of this increase was as a
result of the Azurix North America and EA2 acquisitions.

Other Income and Income Deductions
Interest expense increased by $1.0 million, primarily due to
the funding of the acquisitions of Azurix America and EA2.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Internal sources of cash flow are provided by retention of a
portion of earnings, amortization of deferred charges, deferral
of taxes and depreciation expense. Internal cash generation is
influenced by weather patterns, economic conditions and the
timing of rate relief. When internal cash generation is not suf-
ficient to meet corporate obligations on a timely basis, exter-
nal sources of funds are utilized. The availability and cost of
external cash reflect the consistency and reliability of earn-
ings. External sources of cash consist of short-term bank loans,
the sale of securities — commercial paper, unsecured notes,
bonds, preferred stock and common stock — as well as ad-
vances and contributions from developers.

Until September 17, 2001, the Company’s Dividend Rein-
vestment and Stock Purchase Plan allowed shareholders and
customers of the utility subsidiaries to purchase up to $5,000 of
common stock each month directly from the Company at a 2%
discount from the then prevailing market price. This plan was
suspended in connection with the anticipated merger with RWE.

New shares of common stock also were previously issued
in connection with the Company’s Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan, the Employees’ Stock Ownership Plan,
the Savings Plan for Employees and the 2000 Stock Award
and Incentive Plan. This strategy has been suspended in an-
ticipation of the merger with RWE. The Company’s shares
necessary to meet the obligations under the employee benefit
plans are now purchased in the open market.

The Company’s utility subsidiaries fund construction pro-
grams and supplement cash flow through the use of short-term
borrowings. In June 2000 the Company created American
Water Capital to provide a single source of debt capital for the
Company and its utility subsidiaries. As a result of consoli-
dating subsidiary credit lines and cash management activities
in American Water Capital, the Company was able to reduce
the consolidated credit requirements by approximately $228
million. American Water Capital derives its credit worthiness
from a strong support agreement with American Water Works,
which is considered the equivalent of an unconditional guar-

antee of the obligations of American Water Capital. As a re-
sult, American Water Capital was rated A- (positive outlook)
by Standard and Poor’s and Baal (review for possible upgrade)
by Moodys Investor Service at December 31, 2001.

Consolidated Capitalization Ratios

Common  Preferred
(At December 31) Equity Stock Debt
2001 36% 1% 63%
2000 37% 1% 62%
1999 37% 2% 61%
1998 37% 2% 61%
1997 36% 3% 61%

Note: Debt includes amounts due within one year.

American Water Capital maintains a $500 million com-
mercial paper program, the first of its kind in the water utility
industry. American Water Capital also has a $500 million bank
credit facility involving ten domestic and international banks
that supports the commercial paper program. Borrowing un-
der the revolving credit line, at the Company’s option, bears
interest at a rate based upon either a defined base rate or the
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The Company pays
a commitment fee of 12.5 basis points on the entire amount of
the commitment (whether borrowed or not borrowed) and a
usage fee of 40 basis points (50 basis points if borrowings
exceed $167,000). These fees may fluctuate based upon the
Company’s current bond rating.

The issuance of commercial paper reduces the amount
available under the bank credit facility. At December 31, 2001
$395.6 million of commercial paper and $18.5 million of bank
horrowings were outstanding. Ample credit lines are avail-
able to provide funds needed for 2002 construction require-
ments and to maintain short-term borrowings not yet refinanced
on a long-term basis. Short-term borrowings are repaid with
internally generated cash, and the proceeds obtained from
selling debt securities either publicly or to institutional in-
vestors on a private placement basis.

On March 29, 2001, American Water Capital issued $140
million of unsecured notes on behalf of nine affiliated utilities
bearing interest at 6.87%. Proceeds from the sale of the bonds
were used to repay short-term borrowings, fund construction
programs, and to refinance existing debt. In addition on No-
vember 6, 2001, RWE entered into a Note Purchase Agree-
ment with American Water Capital and American Water Works
committing to purchase $1.05 billion and $150 million, respec-
tively, of the companies’ unsecured notes. The agreement speci-
fies the notes will mature on November 6, 2006 and bear inter-
est at 4.92% payable annually. The agreement also provides for
multiple issuances, the first of which occurred at the closing
date and included $148.5 million by American Water Capital
and $150 million by American Water Works. The American
Water Capital proceeds were used to repay short-term debt for
seven affiliated atilities, while the $150 million borrowed by
American Water Works was used to fund the Azurix acquisi-
tion. The second and final issue under the Note Purchase Agree-
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ment closed on January 14, 2002 totaling $900 million to Ameri-
can Water Capital and was primarily used to fund the purchase
of the Citizens water and wastewater assets.

Upon giving effect to the above financings through January
14, 2002, and the call of American Water Works’ preferred
stocks effective March 1, 2002, the Company’s total debt rep-
resents 70% of total capitalization. The Company’s bank credit
facility that expires on June 25, 2002 includes a limitation on
total debt not to exceed 72.5% of total capitalization. Upon
renewal of the credit facility, the Company will seek to in-
crease the debt limitation given the pending upgrades from
the rating agencies in connection with the RWE merger. How-
ever, if the Company were not successful in increasing the
debt limitation, the Company may need to issue additional
equity in order to continue its acquisition strategy. In addition
if the RWE merger did not close, the Company would need to
issue equity in order to maintain its credit ratings.

Contractual Qbligations 2t December 31, 2001

The Company and its subsidiaries plan to fund construction
programs, continue acquisitions and repay short-term borrow-
ings and maturing bonds in 2002 with the issuance of approxi-
mately $470 million of long-term debt, and with additional com-
mon equity investments from American Water Works. Effective
February 7, 2001 American Water Capital has the ability to
issue up to $1.6 billion aggregate principal amount of debt se-
curities under a shelf registration filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. However with the issuance of the unse-
cured notes to RWE, the Company does not anticipate using
approximately $1 billion of the shelf securities available. The
combined amount of short-term borrowings and bonds matur-
ing within one year is expected to decline to approximately $475
million in 2002. A discussion of the acquisition and capital
spending programs begins on page 7.

The following table summarizes information about the
Company’s obligations to make future payments under con-
tracts such as debt and lease agreements:

Payments Due By Period

Less
Than 1 1-3 4-5 After 5
(000) Year Year Year Year Total
Long-term debt (includes capital lease obligations) $166,087 $269,347 $383,573 $1,897,099 $2,716,106
Preferred stocks called for redemption 11,673 - - - 11,673
Preferred stocks with mandatory redemption requirements 707 1,296 1,295 27,176 30,474
Operating lease obligations 10,268 15,416 10,791 5,777 42,252
$188,735 $286,059 $395,659 $1,930,052 $2,800,505

In addition to the American Water Capital bank credit fa-
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cility, American Water Works has secured certain commitments
of American Water Services in the form of standby letters of
credit totaling $12 million and has guaranteed $9 million of
debt related to wastewater treatment capacity owned by the
City of Tolleson, AZ that is used by Arizona-American.

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet
financings (or relationships with special purpose entities for
purposes of off- balance sheet financing), derivative instru-
ments or hedging activities.
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Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk, including changes in interest rates, certain commodity prices and equity prices. The
exposure to changes in interest rates is a result of financing through the issuance of fixed-rate long-term debt and preferred
stocks. The following table provides the principal amounts by period of maturity and the weighted average effective interest rate
for all such obligations outstanding in the period for the Company’s obligations that are sensitive to interest rate changes. The
exposure to equity price risk is generally associated with the Company’s investments in equity securities of several telecommuni-

cations companies.

Interest Rate Risk

Fair Value at
(000 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total Dec. 31, 2001
Fixed-rate long-term debt,
including current portion $165,647  $210,337 $43,161 $64,124  $170,808 $2,059,060 $2,713,137 $2,744,060
Average interest rate 6.75% 6.71% 6.62% 6.59% 6.70%
Fixed-rate preferred stocks with
mandatory redemption requirements ~ $707 $648 $648 $647 $27,176 $30,474 $32,679
Average interest rate 8.08% 8.10% 8.15% 8.18% 8.21%
Fair Yalue at
{000) 2001 2002 2004 2005 Thereafter Total Dgc. 31, 2000
Fixed-rate long-term debt,
including current portion $160,944  $146,088  $207,998 $49,470 $63,134 $1,802,010 $2,429,644 $2,478,382
Average interest rate 7.07% 7.01% 6.95% 6.92% 6.89%
Fixed-rate preferred stocks with
mandatory redemption requirements $1,028 $2,208 $648 $648 $27,722 $32,902 $ 34,395
Average interest rate 8.11% 8.12% 8.14% 8.16% 8.19%

New Accounting Standards

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

and Hedging Activities

On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Fi-
nancial Accounting Standards No. 133 “Accounting for De-
rivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133), as
amended. This statement establishes accounting and report-
ing standards for derivative instruments and hedging activi-
ties. SFAS 133 requires that an entity recognize all deriva-
tives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial
position and measure those instruments at fair value. This new
accounting standard did not have any effect on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations. The Company’s con-
tracts that meet the definition of a derivative are for normal
purchases and normal sales, are expected to result in a physi-
cal delivery, and are of quantities expected to be used or sold
over a reasonable period in the normal course of business.
The Company has no hedging activities.

Business Combinations/ Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board is-
sued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141,

“Business Combinations” (SFAS 141) and No. 142, “Good-
will and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142), collectively
referred to as the “Standards” SFAS 141 supersedes Ac-
counting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 16, “Busi-
ness Combinations”. The provisions of SFAS 141 (1) re-
quire that the purchase method of accounting be used for
all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001,
(2) provide specific criteria for the initial recognition and
measurement of intangible assets apart from goodwill, and
{3) require that unamortized negative goodwill be written
off immediately as an extraordinary gain instead of being
deferred and amortized. SFAS 141 also requires that upon
adoption of SFAS 142 the Company reclassify the carrying
amounts of certain intangible assets into or out of goodwill,
based on certain criteria. SFAS 142 supersedes APB 17,
“Intangible Assets,” and is effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after December 15, 2001. SFAS 142 primarily ad-
dresses the accounting for goodwill and intangible assets
subsequent to their initial recognition. The provisions of
SFAS 142 (1) prohibit the amortization of goodwill and in-
definite-lived intangible assets, (2) require that goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangibles assets be tested annually
for impairment (and in interim periods if certain events
occur indicating that the carrying value of goodwill and/or
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indefinite-lived intangible assets may be impaired), (3) require
that reporting units be identified for the purpose of assessing
potential future impairments of goodwill, and (4) remove the
forty-year limitation on the amortization period of intangible
assets that have finite lives.

The provisions of the Standards also apply to equity-method
investments made both before and after June 30, 2001. SFAS
141 requires that the unamortized deferred credit related to
an excess over cost arising from an investment that was ac-
counted for using the equity method (equity-method negative
goodwill), and that was acquired before July 1, 2001, must be
written-off immediately and recognized as the cumulative ef-
fect of a change in accounting principle. Equity-method nega-
tive goodwill arising from equity investments made after June
30, 2001 must be written-off immediately and recorded as an
extraordinary gain, instead of being deferred and amortized.
SFAS 142 prohibits amortization of the excess of cost over the
underlying equity in the net assets of an equity-method investee
that is recognized as goodwill.

The Company will adopt the provisions of SFAS 142 in its
first quarter ended March 31, 2002. The Company is in the
process of preparing for its adoption of SFAS 142 and is making
the determinations as to what its reporting units are and what
amounts of goodwill, intangible assets, other assets, and liabili-
ties should be allocated to those reporting units. The Company
expects that it will no longer record $1.7 million of annual tax
deductible amortization relating to its existing goodwill associ-
ated with the 1999 acquisition of its joint venture partner’s in-
terest in AmericanAnglian Environmental Technologies.

SFAS 142 requires that goodwill be tesied annually for
impairment using a two-step process. The first step is to iden-
1ify a potential impairment and, in transition, this step must
be measured as of the beginning of the fiscal year. However, a
company has six months from the date of adoption to complete
the first step. The Company expects to complete that first step
of the goodwill impairment test during the second quarter of
2002. The second step of the goodwill impairment test mea-
sures the amount of the impairment loss (measured as of the
beginning of the year of adoption), if any, and must be com-
pleted by the end of the Company’s fiscal year. Intangible as-
sets deemed to have an indefinite life will be tested for im-
pairment using a one-step process which compares the fair
value to the carrying amount of the asset as of the beginning of
the fiscal year, and pursuant to the requirements of SFAS 142
will be completed during the first quarter of 2002. Any im-
pairment loss resulting from the transitional impairment tests
will be reflected as the cumulative effect of a change in ac-
counting principle in the first quarter of 2002. The Company
has not vet determined what effect these impairment tests will
have on the Company’s earnings and financial position.

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

In June of 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” (SFAS 143)
on the accounting for obligations associated with the retire-
ment of long-lived assets. SFAS 143 requires a liability to be
recognized in the financial statements for retirement obliga-
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tions meeting specific criteria. Measurement of the initial ob-
ligation is to approximate fair value with an equivalent amount
recorded as an increase in the value of the capitalized asset.
The asset will be depreciable in accordance with normal de-
preciation policy and the liability will be increased, with a
charge to the income statement, until the obligation is settled.
SFAS 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2002. The Company is currently evaluating the effects that
adoption of the provisions of SFAS 143 will have on its results
of operations and financial position but does not expect them
to be material.

Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets

In August of 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
1ssued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” (SFAS 144) that replaces Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standards No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Dis-
posed of.” SFAS 144 requires that one accounting model be
used for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale and broad-
ens discontinued operations to include more disposal trans-
actions. Under SFAS 144, operating losses of discontinued
operations are recognized in the period in which they occur,
instead of accruing future operating losses before they occur.
SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after Decem-
ber 15, 2001. The Company is currently evaluating the effects
that adoption of the provisions of SFAS 144 will have on its
results of operations and financial position but does not ex-
pect them to be material.

Forward Looking Information

Forward looking statements in this report, including, without
limitation, statements relating to the Company’s plans, strate-
gies, objectives, expectations, intentions and adequacy of re-
sources, are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the
U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
forward looking statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual re-
sults, performance or achievements of the Company to be mate-
rially different from any future results, performance or achieve-
ments expressed or implied by such forward looking statements.
These factors include, among others, the following: the success
of pending applications for rate increases, inability to obtain, or
to meet conditions imposed for, regulatory approval of pending
acquisitions, weather conditions that tend to extremes of tem-
perature or duration; availability, terms and development of
capital; business abilities and judgment of personnel; changes
in, or the failure to comply with governmental regulations, par-
ticularly those affecting the environment and water quality; com-
petition; success of operating initiatives, advertising and pro-
motional efforts; existence of adverse publicity or litigation;
changes in business strategy or plans; quality of management;
general economic and business conditions; and other factors
described in filings of the Company with the SEC. The Com-
pany undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward looking statement, whether as a result of new informa-
tion, future events or otherwise.
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Management’s Responsibilily for Financial Repeorting

The management of the Company is responsible for the prepa-
ration of the following financial statements and for their integ-
rity and objectivity. These financial statements conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and, where required, include amounts which rep-
resent management’s best judgments and estimates. The
Company’s management also prepared the other information
in this Annual Report and is responsible for its accuracy and
consistency with the financial statements.

The Company maintains internal control systems to enable
it to fulfill its obligations for responsible financial reporting.
These systems include an Internal Audit Department which
monitors internal controls and reports directly to the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors. Management views the
purpose of internal auditing as an independent examination
and assessment of Company activities related to compliance
with policy, procedures and the law as well as the safeguard-
ing of assets.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors consists of
five independent directors who meet with the Company’s se-
nior financial personnel, internal auditors and independent
accountants. They report their findings to the Board of Direc-
tors and recommend a firm of independent accountants.

The Company’s independent accountants, Price-
waterhouseCoopers LLP, are engaged to conduct an indepen-
dent audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Their audit includes obtaining a sufficient under-
standing of the internal control structure to establish a basis
for reliance thereon in determining the nature, extent and tim-
ing of the tests applied in the audit of the financial statements.
Their opinion on the fairness of the reported operating results,
cash flows and financial condition appears below.

%Q@%

Ellen C. Wolf
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 4, 2002

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of

American Water Works Company, Ine.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and the related consolidated statements of income and com-
prehensive income and of retained earnings, of cash flows, of
capitalization and of common stockholders’ equity present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ameri-
can Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their opera-
tions and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the ac-
counting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

S NCLn T {4 '(/\e‘n‘u { (;’rr,.ﬁ( () Z—(L/O
4
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

February 4, 2002
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Conselidated Balance Sheet
(Dollars in thousands)

At December 31, 2001 2000
Assels
Property, plant and equipment
Utility plant - at original cost less accumulated depreciation $5,458,909 $5,202,833
Utility ptant acquisition adjustments, net 68,916 75,294
Nonutility property, net of accumulated depreciation 94,149 37,831
Excess of cost of investments in subsidiaries over book equity at acquisition, net 20,715 24,103
Total property, plant and equipment 5,042,689 5,340,061
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19,891 28,571
Customer accounts receivable 153,142 103,975
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (7,660) (2,575)
Unbilled revenues 86,065 83,878
Miscellaneous receivables 16,483 15,117
Materials and supplies 32,281 20,683
Deferred vacation pay 11,422 10,923
Restricted funds 224 224
Other 18,240 16,900
Total current assets 330,588 277,696
Regulatory and other long-term assets
Regulatory asset ~ income taxes recoverable through rates 217,330 216,652
Other investments 39,956 73,997
Debt and preferred stock expense 45,882 47,630
Deferred pension expense 30,712 23,479
Deferred postretirement benefit expense 9,318 10,129
Deferred security costs 7,058 —
Deferred business services project expenses 36,311 4,796
Deferred tank painting costs 16,585 16,829
Restricted funds 8,570 8,343
Goodwill 115,773 31,487
Intangible assets 23,400 —
Other 82,927 83,699
Total regulatory and other long-term assets 633,822 517,041
Total assets $ 6,607,099 $6,134,798
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American Water Werls Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

2001 2000
Capitalization and Liabilities
Capitalization
Common stockholders’ equity $1,758,018 $1,669,677
Preferred stocks called for redemption 11,673 11,673
Preferred stocks of subsidiaries with mandatory redemption requirements 30,474 32,902
Preferred stocks of subsidiaries without mandatory redemption requirements 7,268 8118
Long-term debt
American Water Works Company, Inc. 297,000 159,000
Subsidiaries 2,253,019 2,112,165
Total capitalization 4,357,452 3,993,535
Current liabilities
Short-term debt 414,083 412,179
Current portion of long-term debt 166,087 161,395
Accounts payable 67,996 52,447
Taxes accrued, including federal income 21,756 25,960
Interest accrued 43,015 42,641
Accrued vacation pay 11,577 11,564
Other 100,220 67,865
Total current liabilities 824,734 774,051
Regulatory and other long-term liabilities
Advances for construction 230,801 216,125
Deferred income taxes 624,449 605,343
Deferred investment tax credits 38,633 40,098
Accrued pension expense 62,355 50,414
Accrued postretirement benefit expense 13,808 13,930
Other 41,007 37,823
Total regulatory and other long-term liabilities 1,011,033 963,733
Contributions in aid of construction 413,860 403,479
Commitments and contingencies — —
Total capitalization and liabilities $6,607,033 $6,134,798

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Gompanies

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income and of Retained Earnings

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the years ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Consolidated Income and Comprehensive Income
Operating revenues $ 1,438,887 $1,350,590 $1,260,857
Operating expenses
Operation and maintenance 664,549 603,305 566,948
Depreciation and amortization 185,211 165,888 151,641
General taxes 129,533 125,219 122,674
979,233 894,412 841,263
Operating income 459,534 456,178 419,594

Other income (deductions)

Interest (192,522) (191,783) (178,215)
Allowance for other funds used during construction 4,905 7,804 11,849
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 4,043 5,891 10,577
Amortization of debt expense (2,763) (2,770} (2,754)
Preferred dividends of subsidiaries (2,9853) (3,165) (3,311)
RWE and NEI merger related costs (9,992) — (20,535)
Gain from sale of Salisbury system 4,820 — —
Other, net 6,707 (5,788) (6,856)
(187,787) (189,811) (189,245)

income before income taxes 271,807 266,367 230,349
Provision for income taxes 110,324 105,306 91,400
Net income 161,483 161,061 138,949
Dividends on preferred stocks 584 3,700 3,984
Net income to common stock 160,899 157,361 134,965

Other comprehensive income (Joss), net of tax

Unrealized gain (loss) on securities (16,187) (67,158) 59,323

Reclassification adjustment for gain included in net income (3,158) — —
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (19,345) (67,158} 59,323
Comprehensive income $ 141,594 $ 90,203 $ 194,288
Average shares of basic common stock outstanding 99,465 97,988 96,544
Earnings per average common share outstanding:

Basic $ 1.62 $ 1.61 $ 1.40

Diluted $ 1.67 $ 1.61 $ 1.40

Consolidated Retained Earnings

Balance at beginning of year $ 1,089,486 $1,001,029 $ 945,434
Add: net income 161,483 161,061 138,949
Gain (loss) on treasury stock 807 (801) —
1,231,770 1,161,289 1,084,383
Deduct: dividends paid

Preferred stock 128 3,244 3,528
Preference stock 456 456 456

Common stock — $.94 per share in 2001,
$.90 per share in 2000, $.86 per share in 1999 93,414 88,103 76,479
National Enterprises Inc. common stock — — 2,891
93,998 91,803 83,354
Balance at end of year $1,137,772 $1,069,486 $1,001,029

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, lnc. and Subsidiary Companies

Censolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Dollars in thousands)

For the years ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 161,483 $ 161,061 $ 138,949
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization 183,211 165,888 151,641
Provision for deferred income taxes 30,980 27,431 31,411
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 10,582 8,608 7,731
Allowance for other funds used during construction (4,905) (7,804) (11,849)
Gain from sales of assets (14,124) (3,713) (1,595)
Employee stock plan expenses 4,808 3,330 5,185
Employee benefit expenses greater (less) than funding (49) (1,698) 4217
Deferred regulatory costs (44,415) (9,882) (5,373)
Amortization of deferred charges 15,986 10,671 13,985
Other, net 1,094 (2,492) 243
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions
Accounts receivable (31,363) (24,169) (10,934)
Unbilled revenues (2,187) (5,114) (2,262)
Other current assets {1,125) (5,370) (1,978)
Accounts payable. 4,907 (14,644) (3,150)
Taxes accrued, including federal income (4,759) 9,423 (8,751)
Interest accrued 374 (1,031) 1,809
Other current liabilities 15,714 (7,349) 20,113
Net cash from operating activities 327,612 303,146 329,392
Cash Flows {rom lnvesting Activities
Capital expenditures {380,650) (377.,217) (467,351)
Allowance for other funds used during construction 4,905 7,804 11,849
Acquisitions (214,378) (51,821) (41,764)
Proceeds from the sale of assets 23,745 6,827 2,703
Removal costs from property, plant and equipment retirements {16,639) (14,309) (15,409)
Restricted funds (227) 12,548 1,737
Net cash used in investing activities (583,250) (416,168) {508,235)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 457,997 47,908 128,332
Proceeds from common stock, net of issuance costs 36,082 33,304 36,617
Net borrowings (repayments) under short-term debt agreements 1,904 172,315 150,024
Advances and contributions for construction, net of refunds 32,348 31,565 43,121
Debt issuance costs (1,114} (2,262) (5,376)
Repayment of long-term debt (182,251) (46,800) (82,830)
Redemption of preferred stocks (3,278) (41,118) (3,278)
Dividends paid (93,998) (91,803) (83,354)
Purchase of common stock for treasury (932) (4,616) (1,190)
Net cash from financing activities 246,758 98,493 182,066
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8,880) (14,529) 3,223
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 28,571 43,100 39,877
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 19,691 § 28,571 § 43,100
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of capitalized amount $ 194,462 $ 196,841 $ 180,475
Income taxes $ 87,208 $ 78,942 $ 69,015

Common stock issued in lieu of cash in connection with the Employee Stock Ownership
Plan, the Savings Plan for Employees and the 2000 Stock Award and Incentive Plan {otaled
$1,488 in 2000 and $5,428 in 1999. Common stock placed into treasury in connection with
the Employee Stock Ownership Plan, the Savings Plan for Employees and the 2000 Stock
Award and Incentive Plan totaled $1,759 in 2001, $4,872 in 2000 and $3,675 in 1999.

Capital lease obligations of $503 were recorded in 2001.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consclidated Statement of Capitalization
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

At December 31, 2001 2000
Common Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock — $1.25 par value, authorized 300,000,000 shares, ‘
issued 100,016,273 shares in 2001 and 98,819,845 shares in 2000 $ 125,020 $ 123,525
Paid-in capital 489,868 454,568
Retained earnings 1,137,772 1,069,486
Accumulated other comprehensive income 5,938 25,303
Unearned compensation (539) (359)
Treasury stock at cost — 1,891 shares in 2001 and 129,216 shares in 2000 (&1} (2,846)
1,758,018 1,669,677
At December 31, 2001, common shares reserved for issuance in connection with the
Company’s stock plans were 80,865,863 shares for the Stockholder Rights Plan, 1,641,852
shares for the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, 565,493 shares for the
Employees’ Stock Ownership Plan and 532,381 shares for the Savings Plan for Employees.
Up to 4,234,367 shares of common stock may be issued under the 2000 Stock Award
and Incentive Plan, of which approximately 3,300,000 shares were available to be granted
at December 31, 2001.
Preferred Stocks With Mandatory Redemption Reguirements:
Cumulative preferred stock — $25 par value, authorized 1,770,000 shares
8.5% series (non-voting), outstanding 1,600,000 shares, redeemed
at par value on December 1, 2000 — —
Preferred Stocks Without Mandatery Redemption Reguirements:
{All shares redeemed March 1, 2002)
Cumulative preferred stock — $25 par value
5% series (one-tenth of a vote per share), outstanding 101,777 shares 2,544 2,544
Cumulative preference stock — $25 par value, authorized 750,000 shares
5% series (non-voting), outstanding 365,158 shares 9,129 9,129
Cumuiative preferential stock — $35 par value, authorized 3,000,000 shares
(one-tenth of a vote per share) no outstanding shares - —
11,673 11,673
Preferred Stocks of Subsidiaries:
Dividend rate
3.9% to less than 5% 4,444 4,610
5% to less than 6% 4,637 4,669
6% to less than 7% 1,365 1,455
7% to less than 8% 3,094 3,984
8% to less than 9% 21,250 23,050
9% to less than 10% 2,352 3,112
10% to less than 11% _ 140
37,742 41,020

Preferred stock agreements of certain subsidiaries require annual sinking fund payments in
varying amounts and permit redemption at various prices at the option of the subsidiaries
on thirty days notice, or in the event of involuntary liguidation, at par value plus accrued
dividends. Sinking fund payments for the next five years will amount to $707 in 2002,
$648 in 2003, $648 in 2004, $648 in 2005 and $647 in 2006.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Current
Maturities 2001 2000
Long-Term Debt of American Water Works Company, Ine.:
7.41% Series C debentures, due May 1, 2003 $ - $ 81,000 $ 81,000
6.28% Series D debentures, due July 2, 2002 10,000 - 10,000
6.28% Series D debentures, due July 2, 2003 - 45,000 45,000
6.32% Series D debentures, due July 2, 2004 — 15,000 15,000
7.02% Senior Note, due August 1, 2005 2,000 6,000 8,000
4.92% Senior Note, due November 6, 2006 — 150,000 —
12,000 297,000 159,000
Long-Term Debt of Subsidiaries:

Interest rate
1% to less than 2% 849 25,363 16,913
2% 10 less than 3% 54 63 —
3% to less than 4% 70 314 353
4% to less than 5% 768 155,295 3,552
5% to less than 6% 109 487,563 487,922
6% to less than 7% 3,479 €43,658 513,182
7% to less than 8% 116,117 588,571 706,580
8% to less than 9% 15,666 29,103 113,200
9% to less than 10% 12,557 194,189 214,646
10% to less than 11% 3,978 50,371 53,352
153,647 2,250,490 2,109,700
Capital leases 440 2,529 2,465
$154,087 2,253,019 2,112,165
$ 4,357,452 $ 3,993,535

Maturities of long-term debt of subsidiaries, including sinking fund requirements, during
the next five years will amount to $154,087 in 2002, $82,808 in 2003, $41,53% in 2004,
$62,244 in 2005 and $169,329 in 2006.

Long-term debt of subsidiaries is substantially secured by utility plant and by a pledge
of certain securities of subsidiaries and affiliates.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Common Stockholders’ Equity

(Dollars in thousands, except per sharé amounts)

Accumulated

Other Common
Common Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Unearned Treasury Stock Stockholders’
Shares Par Value Capital Earnings Income Compensation Shares At Cost Equity
Balance at December 37, 1998 95,831,790 $119,789  §$384,255 § 945,434 $33,138 $(980) 800 $(25) $1,481,611
Net income — — — 138,949 — — -— — 138,949
Dividend reinvestment 291,808 365 7,896 — — — — — 8,261
Stock purchase 839,288 1,050 22,714 — - — — — 23,764
Employess’ stock ownership plan 109,932 137 3,040 — — — — — 3,177
Savings plan for employees 200,153 251 5,699 — — — — — 5,950
Incentive plan 30,788 38 830 — — (76) — — 792
Other comprehensive income — — — — 59,323 — — — 59,323
Treasury stock — — — — —_ — 108,875 (3,675) (3,675)
Dividends:
Preferred stocks - — — (3,984) — — — — (3,984)
Common stock — — — (79,370) — — — — (79.370)
Balance at December 31, 1999 97,303,759 121,630 424,434 1,001,029 92,461 (1,056) 109,675 (3,700) 1,634,798
Net income — — — 161,061 — — — — 161,081
Dividend reinvestment 389,151 486 8,337 — — — — — 8,823
Stock purchase 1,029,257 1,287 22,256 — — — — — 23,543
Employees’ stock ownership plan 32,134 40 631 — — - — — 671
Savings plan for employees 65,544 82 1,293 — — — — — 1,375
Incentive plan — — (2,383) — — 697 — — (1,686)
Other comprehensive income — - — — (67,158) — — — (67,158)
Treasury stock - — — (801) — — 19,541 854 53
Dividends:
Preferred stocks — — — (3,700) — — — — (3,700)
Common stock —_ — — (88,103) — — — — (88,103)
Balance at December 31, 2000 98,819,845 123,525 454,568 1,069,486 25,303 (359) 129,216 (2,846) 1,669,677
Net income — — — 161,483 —_ —_ — —_ 167,483
Dividend reinvestment 240,350 300 6,963 —_ — — — - 7,263
Stock purchase 913,894 1,142 26,437 — — — — — 27,579
Employees’ stock ownership plan - — - — — —_ - —_ —
Savings plan for employees — —_ —_ — —_ —_ — — —_
Incentive plan 42,184 53 1,187 —_ —_ (180) — —_ 1,060
Other comprehensive income - — — — {18,345) _ — — (19,345)
Treasury stack - — 713 801 — —  (127,325) 2,785 4,239
Dividends:
Preferred stocks - — - (384) - - — - {584)
Common stock - — — (93,414) — - — — (93,414)
Balance at December 31, 2001 100,016,273 $125,020 $489,888 $1,137,772 $5,958 $(539) 1,891 $(61) $1,758,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financiat statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Notes to Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Note 1: Organization and Operation

American Water Works Company, Inc. through its regulated
and unregulated subsidiaries provides water and wastewater
service in 28 states and three Canadian Provinces. As public
utilities, the regulated subsidiaries function under rules and
regulations prescribed by state regulatory commissions. The
Company provides water and wastewater management services
through its unregulated subsidiary, American Water Services.
This subsidiary had been operated as a joint venture until
December 31, 1999 when the Company acquired iis partner’s
interest (see AmericanAnglian Environmental Technologies
in Note 4). In addition, American Water Resources is a wholly-
owned subsidiary whose function is to primarily invest in wa-
ter and wastewater related products and services.

The Company has identified Regulated Utility Services and
Unregulated Services as its two reportable segments. Prior to
the November 2001 acquisition of Azurix North America and
Azurix Industrials Corp. (see Azurix North America and Azurix
Industrials in Note 4) the Company’s unregulated operations
had not been reflected as a reportable segment due to their
limited scope and impact on the financial results of the Com-

pany.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the parent company and all of its subsidiaries. Intercompany
accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
Prior to January 1, 2000 the resulis of operations of the
Company’s former AmericanAnglian Environmental Technolo-
gies joint venture were accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. The operating resulis of Azurix North America
and Azurix Industrials Corp. have been included in the con-
solidated statement of income since the completion of the ac-
quisition on November 7, 2001.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dis-
closures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

Regulation

The utility subsidiaries have incurred various costs and re-
ceived various credits which have been reflected as regula-
tory assets and liabilities on the Company’s consolidated bal-
ance sheet. Accounting for such costs and credits as regula-
tory assets and liabilities is in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 71 “Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (SFAS 71). This state-
ment sets forth the application of generally accepted account-
ing principles for those companies whose rates are established
by or are subject to approval by an independent third-party
regulator. Under SFAS 71, utility companies defer costs and

credits on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabili-
ties when it is probable that those costs and credits will be
recognized in the rate making process in a period different
from the period in which they would have been reflected in
income by an unregulated company. These deferred regula-
tory assets and liabilities are then reflected in the income state-
ment in the period in which the same amounts are reflected in
the rates charged for service.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Additions to utility plant and replacements of retirement units
of property are capitalized. Costs include material, direct labor
and such indirect items as engineering and supervision, payroll
taxes and benefits, transportation and an allowance for funds
used during construction. The costs incurred to acquire and
internally develop computer software for internal use are capi-
talized as a unit of property. Repairs, maintenance and minor
replacements of property are charged to current operations. The
cost of property units retired in the ordinary course of business
plus removal cost (less salvage) is charged to accumulated de-
preciation. The cost of property, plant and equipment is gener-
ally depreciated using the straight-line method over the esti-
mated service lives of the assets. The depreciation rates, based
on the average balance of depreciable property, were 2.64% in
2001, 2.54% in 2000 and 2.51% in 1999.

Nonutility property consists primarily of buildings and
equipment utilized by American Water Works Service Com-
pany which provides various services to affiliated companies
and by American Water Services in its unregulated manage-
ment services business. This property is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation calculated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Utility plant acquisition adjustments include the difference
between the purchase price of utility plant and its original
cost (less accumulated depreciation) and are generally being
amortized over a period of 40 years.

The excess of cost of investments in subsidiaries is prima-
rily attributable to various acquisitions of utility subsidiaries
that occurred prior to October 31, 1970, that are not being
amortized because, in the opinion of management, there has
been no diminution in value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially all of the Company’s cash is invested in interest
bearing accounts. The Company considers all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when pur-
chased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist pri-
marily of investment grade commercial paper, bank certifi-
cates of deposit and United States Government securities. Cash
equivalents are stated at cost plus accrued interest which ap-
proximates market value.

Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies are stated at the lower of average pur-
chased cost and net realizable value.

Regulatory Assets
The Company has recorded a regulatory asset for the addi-
tional revenues expected to be realized as the tax effects of
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Hotes to Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

temporary differences previously flowed through to customers
reverse. These temporary differences are primarily related to
the difference between book and tax depreciation on property
placed in service before the adoption by the regulatory au-
thorities of full normalization for rate making purposes.

The regulatory asset for income taxes recoverable through
rates is net of the reduction expected in future revenues as
deferred taxes previously provided, attributable to the differ-
ence between the state and federal income tax rates under
prior law and the current statutory rates, reverse over the av-
erage remaining service lives of the related assets.

Debt expense is amortized over the lives of the respective
issues. Call premiums on the redemption of long-term debt,
as well as unamortized debt expense, are deferred and amor-
tized to the extent they will be recovered through future ser-
vice rates. Expenses of preferred stock issues without sinking
fund provisions are amortized over 30 years from date of is-
sue; expenses of issues with sinking fund provisions are
charged to operations as shares are retired.

Pension expense in excess of the amount contributed to
the pension plans is deferred by certain subsidiaries. These
costs will be recovered in future service rates as contributions
are made to the pension plan.

Postretirement benefit expense in excess of the amount
recovered in rates through 1997 has been deferred by certain
subsidiaries. These costs are now recognized in the rates
charged for water service and will be fully recovered over a
20-year period ending in 2012 as authorized by the regulatory
authorities.

Deferred treatment plant costs consist of operating ex-
penses, including depreciation and property taxes, and the
carrying charges associated with several water treatment plants
and related facilities from the time the assets were placed in
service until recovery of such costs is allowed in future ser-
vice rates. These costs have been recognized in the rates
charged for water service and are being amortized over a
10-year period as authorized by the regulatory authorities.

Deferred business services project expenses consist of
reengineering and start-up activities for consolidated customer
and shared administrative service centers that began opera-
tions in 2001. These costs are being deferred as it is expected
that these costs will be recovered in the rates charged for util-
ity service in the future.

The Company has deferred the cost of additional security
measures that were implemented to protect facilities after the
terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001. These costs are be-
ing deferred as it is expected that these costs will be recov-
ered in the rates charged for utility service in the future.

Tank painting costs are generally deferred and amortized
to current operations on a straight-line basis over periods rang-
ing from 4 to 20 years, as authorized by the regulatory au-
thorities in their determination of rates charged for service.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets and goodwill are associated with acquisi-
tions made by American Water Services, the Company’s man-
agement services subsidiary. The intangible assets are man-
agement contracts with a life of approximately 11 years that
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were acquired in the acquisition of Azurix North America and
Azurix Industrials Corp. that was completed on November 7,
2001 and the acquisition of a former joint venture partner’s
interest in EA2 Systems that was completed on September 20,
2001. $81,484 and $4.,459 of the goodwill is associated with
the Azurix and EA2 acquisitions respectively, and the remain-
ing $29.830 of goodwill is associated with the Company’s De-
cember 31, 1999 acquisition of its joint venture partner’s in-
terest in AmericanAnglian Environmental Technologies. In ac-
cordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (see
New Accounting Standards on page 32, the goodwill associ-
ated with the Azurix and EA2 acquisitions is not being amor-
tized and the goodwill associated with the AmericanAnglian
acquisition will no longer be amortized after December 31,
2001. The annual amortization of the tax deductible goodwill
on the AmericanAnglian acquisition had been $1,657 and is
deductible for tax purposes.

Other Investments and Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income
Other investments include primarily equity securities of pub-
licly and privately held companies. Investments in publicly
traded securities are classified as available for sale and are
recorded in the balance sheet at fair market value with the
change in market value, net of the tax effect, recorded as part
of other comprehensive income. The cost basis of these pub-
licly traded securities is $21,692 and the fair value of these
investments is determined using quoted market prices. Invest-
ments in privately held companies are carried at cost. The
principal publicly traded investments are approximately
1,300,000 shares of Deutsche Telekom (NYSE:DT), 50,000
shares of SJW Corp. (AMEX: SJW) and 4,000,000 shares of
ITCA DeltaCom, Inc. (NASDQ: ITCD). In 2001 a gain of $5,177
and related tax expense of $2,019 were recognized on the sale
of a portion of the Company’s investment in Deutsche Telekom.
The Company did not sell any of these securities during 2000
and 1999.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive in-
come balances at December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Beginning balance $23,303 $92, 461  $33,138
Unrealized gains (losses)

on securities (32,684) (113,552) 102,604
Income taxes on other

comprehensive income 13,339 46,394  (43,281)
Ending balance $ 5,958 $25303  §92,461

The Company also has equity investments in ITC Holding
Company, Inc., and United States Sugar Corporation. The cost
basis of these securities, that are not publicly traded, was
$9,554 at December 31, 2001.

Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities at December 31, 2001 and 2000 in-
clude payables to banks of $29,076 and $17,288 respectively,
which represent checks issued but not presented to banks for
payment, net of the related bank balance.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Advances and Contributions in Aid of Construction
Utility subsidiaries may receive advances and contributions
to fund construction necessary to extend service to new areas.
As determined by the regulatory authorities, advances for con-
struction are refundable for limited periods of time as new
customers begin to receive service. Amounts which are no
longer refundable are reclassified to contributions in aid of
construction. Utility plant funded by advances and contribu-
tions is excluded from rate base and is generally not depreci-
ated for rate making purposes. Generally, advances and con-
tributions received during the period January 1, 1987 through
June 12, 1996 have been included in taxable income and the
related property is depreciable for tax purposes. As a result of
a tax law change, advances and contributions received subse-
quent to June 12, 1996 are excluded from taxable income and
the related property is not depreciable for tax purposes.

On January 11, 2001 the Internal Revenue Service issued
regulations that excluded lateral service lines from its defini-
tion of contributions in aid of construction that are not in-
cluded in taxable income. These customer connection fees are
defined as the cost of installing a connection or service line
from the Company’s main lines to the lines owned by the cus-
tomer. The regulations were effective immediately, and the
Company is now paying tax on money or property received for
these connections.

Recognition of Revenues

Revenues of the regulated utility subsidiaries include amounts
billed to customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts
based on estimated usage from the date of the latest meter
reading to the end of the accounting period.

Revenue from American Water Services’ residuals man-
agement, underground infrastructure development, engineer-
ing and large multi-vear operations and maintenance contracts
is recognized over the contract term based on the estimated
percentage of services provided during the period compared
to the total estimated services to be provided over the entire
contract. Losses on contracts are recognized during the pe-
riod in which the loss first becomes known. Revenue recog-
nized in excess of billings on service contracts are recorded
as unbilled revenue. Billings in excess of revenues recognized
on service contracts are recorded as a liability on the
Company’s balance sheet until the above revenue recognition
criteria are met. Changes in contract performance and related
estimated contract profitability may result in revisions to costs
and revenues and are recognized in the period in which revi-
sions are determined. For other water and wastewater treat-
ment contracts and for time and material contracts, revenue is
recognized as services are provided.

Income Taxes

Certain income and expense items are accounted for in differ-
ent time periods for financial reporting than for income tax
reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes have been provided
on the difference between the tax bases of assets and liabili-
ties and the amounts at which they are carried in the financial
statements. These deferred income taxes are based on the en-
acted tax rates to be in effect when such temporary differ-

ences are expected to reverse. The utility subsidiaries also
recognize regulatory assets and liabilities for the effect on rev-
enues expected to be realized as the tax effects of temporary
differences previously flowed through to customers reverse.

Investment tax credits have been deferred by the utility
subsidiaries and are being amortized to income over the aver-
age estimated service lives of the related assets.

Allowance For Funds Used During Construction
(AFUDC)

AFUDC is a non-cash credit to income with a corresponding
charge to utility plant which represents the cost of borrowed
funds and a return on equity funds devoted to plant under
construction. The utility subsidiaries record AFUDC to the
extent permitted by the regulatory authorities.

Environmental Costs

Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations or
provide a future benefit are expensed or capitalized as appro-
priate. Remediation costs that relate to an existing condition
caused by past operations are accrued when it is probable that
these costs will be incurred and can be reasonably estimated.

Asset Impairment

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangible assets
held and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets, on a separate entity basis,
may not be recoverable. If the sum of the future cash flows
expected to result from the use of the assets and their even-
tual disposition is less than the carrying amount of the assets,
an impairment loss is recognized. Measurement of an impair-
ment loss is based on the fair value of the assets. A regulatory
asset is charged to earnings if and when future recovery in
rates of that asset is no longer probable.

Earnings Per Share

The average number of shares used to calculate diluted earn-
ings per share includes 14,142; 4,784 and 51,837 of potential
common shares issuable in connection with the long-term in-
centive program in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, and
163,414 and 45,227 potential common shares for employee
stock options in 2001 and 2000, respectively (see Note 9).

New Accounting Standards

o Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities

On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Fi-
nancial Accounting Standards No. 133 “Accounting for De-
rivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133), as
amended. This statement establishes accounting and report-
ing standards for derivative instruments and hedging activi-
ties. SFAS 133 requires that an entity recognize all deriva-
tives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial
position and measure those instruments at fair value. This new
accounting standard did not have any effect on the Company’s
financial position or resulis of operations. The Company’s con-
tracts that meet the definition of a derivative are for normal
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purchases and normal sales, are expected to result in a physi-
cal delivery, and are of quantities expected to be used or sold
over a reasonable period in the normal course of business.
The Company has no hedging activities.

o Business Combinations!/ Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board is-
sued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141,
“Business Combinations” (SFAS 141) and No. 142, “Good-
will and Other Intangible Assets™ (SFAS 142), collectively
referred to as the “Standards.” SFAS 141 supersedes Account-
ing Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 16, “Business Com-
binations.” The provisions of SFAS 141 (1) require that the
purchase method of accounting be used for all business com-
binations initiated after June 30, 2001, (2) provide specific
criteria for the initial recognition and measurement of intan-
gible assets apart from goodwill, and (3) require that unamor-
tized negative goodwill be written off immediately as an ex-
traordinary gain instead of being deferred and amortized. SFAS
141 also requires that upon adoption of SFAS 142 the Com-
pany reclassify the carrying amounts of certain intangible as-
sets into or out of goodwill, based on certain criteria. SFAS
142 supersedes APB 17, “Intangible Assets,” and is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, SFAS 142
primarily addresses the accounting for goodwill and intangible
assets subsequent to their initial recognition. The provisions
of SFAS 142 (1) prohibit the amortization of goodwill and in-
definite-lived intangible assets, (2) require that goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets be tested annually for im-
pairment (and in interim periods if certain events occur indi-
cating that the carrying value of goodwill and/or indefinite-
lived intangible assets may be impaired), (3) require that re-
porting units be identified for the purpose of assessing poten-
tial future impairments of goodwill, and (4) remove the forty-
year limitation on the amortization period of intangible assets
that have finite lives.

The provisions of the Standards also apply to equity-method
investments made both before and after June 30, 2001. SFAS
141 requires that the unamortized deferred credit related to
an excess over cost arising from an investment that was ac-
counted for using the equity method (equity-method negative
goodwill), and that was acquired before July 1, 2001, must be
written-off immediately and recognized as the cumulative ef-
fect of a change in accounting principle. Equity-method nega-
tive goodwill arising from equity investments made after June
30, 2001 must be written-off immediately and recorded as an
extraordinary gain, instead of being deferred and amortized.
SFAS 142 prohibits amortization of the excess of cost over the
underlying equity in the net assets of an equity-method investee
that is recognized as goodwill.

The Company will adopt the provisions of SFAS 142 in its

first quarter ended March 31, 2002. The Company is in the

process of preparing for its adoption of SFAS 142 and is mak-
ing the determinations as to what its reporting units are and
what amounts of goodwill, intangible assets, other assets and
liabilities should be allocated to those reporting units. The
Company expects that it will no longer record $1,657 of an-
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nual tax deductible amortization relating to its existing good-
will associated with the 1999 acquisition of its joint venture
partner’s interest in AmericanAnglian Environmental Tech-
nologies.

SFAS 142 requires that goodwill be tested annually for
impairment using a two-step process. The first step is to iden-
tify a potential impairment and, in transition, this step must
be measured as of the beginning of the fiscal year. However, a
company has six months from the date of adoption to complete
the first step. The Company expects to complete that first step
of the goodwill impairment test during the second quarter of
2002. The second step of the goodwill impairment test mea-
sures the amount of the impairment loss (measured as of the
beginning of the year of adoption), if any, and must be com-
pleted by the end of the Company’s fiscal year. Intangible as-
sets deemed to have an indefinite life will be tested for im-
pairment using a one-step process which compares the fair
value to the carrying amount of the asset as of the beginning of
the fiscal year, and pursuant to the requirements of SFAS 142
will be completed during the first quarter of 2002. Any im-
pairment loss resulting from the transitional impairment tests
will be reflected as the cumulative effect of a change in ac-
counting principle in the first quarter of 2002. The Company
has not yet determined what effect these impairment tests will
have on the Company’s earnings and financial position.

o Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

In June of 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” (SFAS 143)
on the accounting for obligations associated with the retire-
ment of long-lived assets. SFAS 143 requires a liability to be
recognized in the financial statements for retirement obliga-
tions meeting specific criteria. Measurement of the initial ob-
ligation is to approximate fair value with an equivalent amount
recorded as an increase in the value of the capitalized asset.
The asset will be depreciable in accordance with normal de-
preciation policy and the liability will be increased, with a
charge to the income statement, until the obligation is settled.
SFAS 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2002. The Company is currently evaluating the effects that
adoption of the provisions of SFAS 143 will have on its results
of operations and financial position but does not expect them
to be material.

o Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

In August of 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” (SFAS 144) that replaces Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standards No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Dis-
posed of.” SFAS 144 requires that one accounting model be
used for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale and broad-
ens discontinued operations to include more disposal trans-
actions. Under SFAS 144, operating losses of discontinued
operations are recognized in the period in which they occur,
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instead of accruing future operating losses before they occur.
SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after Decem-
ber 15, 2001. The Company is currently evaluating the effects
that adoption of the provisions of SFAS 144 will have on its
results of operations and financial position but does not ex-
pect them to be material.

Reclassification
Certain reclassifications have been made to conform previ-
ously reported data to the current presentation.

Note 3: Merger Agreement with RWE

On September 16, 2001 the Company entered into a merger
agreement with RWE Aktiengesellschaft and Thames Water
Aqua Holdings GmbH, which is RWE’s holding company for
its global water business, to merge with a subsidiary of RWE
and become a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of RWE. Un-
der the terms of the merger agreement RWE will purchase all
the outstanding shares of American Water Works Company
common stock at a price of $46.00 per share in cash.

RWE is a global multi-utility company that does business
through its subsidiaries and affiliates in over 120 countries.
Its core businesses are electricity, gas, water, and waste and
recycling. Upon completion of the transaction, American Wa-
ter will be combined with the U.S. operations of Thames Wa-
ter Ple, RWE’s London-based international water services busi-
ness. American Water will manage the joint operations in
North, Central and South America.

The transaction was approved at a special meeting of the
stockholders of American Water Works Company on January
17, 2002. Before the transaction can be completed, state and
federal regulatory approvals are required. As of the end of
January 2002, all of the applications for approval were filed
where required by state regulatory authorities. The states where
applications for approval have been filed are Arizona, Cali-
fornia, Hawaii, Illinois, Kentucky, Marvland, New Jersey, New
Mexico, New York, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia and West
Virginia. Approval of the state public utility agencies in Geor-
gia, Indiana, Iowa, Michigan, Missouri, Ohio and Texas is not
required. Regulatory approval has not been requested in Con-
necticut, Massachusetts and New Hampshire since the sale of
these operations is pending. On February 4, 2002, the Ten-
nessee Regulatory Authority approved the transaction. As a
result of the time required to complete the approval process
by the various regulatory agencies, the Company does not an-
ticipate completion of the merger until the first half of 2003.

During 2001 the Company recorded a charge of $9,992
reflecting costs incurred in connection with the merger. The
merger related costs have been reported on a separate line in
the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive in-
come. No tax benefit was recognized for these investment bank-
ing and legal fees because it is not probable that these costs
will be deductible for tax purposes.

On November 6, 2001 the Company and its financing sub-
sidiary, American Water Capital Corp., executed a Note Pur-
chase Agreement with RWE for up to $1,200,000 in senior
unsecured notes at an interest rate of 4.92%. The notes were
purchased at par by RWE and mature on November 6, 2006.

The Company and its subsidiaries used the proceeds from the
sale of the notes to acquire the common stock of Azurix North
America and Azurix Industrials, to fund the acquisition of the
water and wastewater assets of Citizens Communications Com-
pany and to reduce outstanding short-term debt. Closing oc-
curred in two tranches one on November 6, 2001 in the amount
of $298,500 and another on January 14, 2002 in the amount
of $900,000.

Note 4: Acguisitions and Divestitures

Water and Wastewater Assets of Citizens
Communications Company

On January 15, 2002 the Company and its subsidiaries com-
pleted their acquisition of all of the water and wastewater as-
sets of Citizens Communications Company (NYSE: CZN) for
$859,000 in cash and $120,000 of assumed liabilities. The
purchase price is subject to adjustment upon the completion
of an audited closing statement of net assets. The acquired
operations provide water and wastewater service to 342,000
customers in Arizona, California, Illinois, Indiana, Ohio and
Pennsylvania. Citizens also had developed a water supply
project in Illinois with the possibility of additional wholesale
customers along the pipeline. For the latest fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001, the operations being acquired had rev-
enues of $140,000.

The purchase price for these assets was consistent with the
multiples paid in other similar transactions. The Company is
in the process of obtaining third-party valuations of these as-
sets, and thus has not completed the allocation of the pur-
chase price.

National Enterprises Inc.

On June 25, 1999, the Company completed the acquisition of
National Enterprises Inc., a privately owned company, in a
transaction valued at $700,000. The transaction was accom-
plished through a tax free exchange of 14,937,000 shares of
the Company’s stock for all of the outstanding shares of Na-
tional Enterprises and the assumption of $241,000 of debt.
Subsidiaries of National Enterprises provided water service
to approximately 504,000 customers in Missouri, Illinois, In-
diana and New York. National Enterprises also had passive
investments in the telecommunications industry.

This business combination has been accounted for as a
pooling of interests and, accordingly, the consolidated finan-
cial statements for periods prior to the combination were re-
stated to include the accounts and results of operations of
National Enterprises.

During 1999 the Company recorded a charge of $20,535
and related tax benefits of $7,630 reflecting the one-time costs
incurred in connection with the merger. The merger related
costs consist primarily of severance costs as well as vesting of
certain benefits and other tax deductible costs. The merger
related costs have been reported on a separate line in the con-
solidated statement of income and comprehensive income.

Azurix North America And Azurix Industrials
On November 7, 2001 the Company completed its acquisition
of Azurix North America Corp. and Azurix Industrials Corp.
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for $153,300 in cash and assumption of $6,500 of debt. Azurix
North America and Azurix Industrials were wholly-owned sub-
sidiaries of Azurix Corp. and provide a range of water and
wastewater services, including operations and maintenance,
engineering, carbon regeneration, underground infrastructure
rehabilitation and residuals management. Azurix North
America and Azurix Industrials had revenues totaling approxi-
mately $134,000 in 2001.

This transaction enables the Company to offer a compre-
hensive portfolio of quality water management services to
municipal and industrial customers. The acquisition also ex-
pands the Company’s presence into the southeastern and north-
western U.S. and three Canadian provinces.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
the acquisition. The Company is in the process of completing
valuations of these assets so the allocation of the purchase
price is subject to refinement.

November 7, 2001

Current assets $44,900
Property, plant, and equipment 46,700
Other fong-term assets 4,700
Intangible assets 22,300
Goodwill 73,800

Total assets acquired 192,400
Current liabilities (32,600)
Long-term debt (6,500)

Total liabilities assumed (39,100)
Net assets acquired $153,300

The $22,300 of acquired intangible assets are assigned to
management contracts that have an 11-year life.

Water Utility Subsidiaries of

United Water Resources Inc.

On May 31, 2000, the Company completed its acquisition of five
water utilities in Missouri, Indiana, Illinois and Virginia from
United Water Resources Inc. for approximately $50,000 in cash.
These water utilities provide service to 35,000 customers.

City of Coatesville Pennsylvania Water and
Wastewater Systems

On March 22, 2001 the Company’s subsidiary in Pennsylva-
nia completed the purchase of the City of Coatesville
Authority’s water and wastewater utility systems for $48,200
million in cash. These systems provide water service to 8,600
customers and wastewater service to 6,500 customers.

Americandnglian Environmental Technologies

On December 31, 1999, the Company finalized the purchase
of its joint venture partner Anglian Water’s interest in
AmericanAnglian Environmental Technologies for $32,000 in
cash. This business had revenues of approximately $31,000
in 1999.
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New England Operations

On August 30, 2001 the Company and Kelda Group ple jointly
announced that they had reached an agreement whereby
Kelda’s Aquarion Company subsidiary would acquire the
Company’s New England operations. The transaction price is
approximately $118 million in cash plus the assumption of
$115 million in debt. The subsidiaries being sold serve a total
of 65,000 customers and had revenues of $51 million in 2001.
The sale, which is subject to regulatory approval is expected
to be consummated during the second quarter of 2002.

Town of Salisbury Massachusetts Operating System

On September 28, 2001 the Company completed the sale un-
der threat of condemnation of its Salisbury Water Supply
Company’s operating system to the Town of Salisbury, Massa-
chusetts for $11,500 in cash plus outstanding accounts re-
ceivables. The Salisbury system serves 3,000 customers and
had annual revenues of $1,900.

Note 3: Utility Plant

The components of utility plant by category at December 31
are as follows:

2001 2000

Water plant
Sources of supply $ 301,875 $ 287,892
Treatment and pumping 1,521,214 1,467,320
Transmission and distribution 3,106,076 2,935,265
Services, meters and fire hydrants 1,126,589 1,062,997
General structures and equipment 564,664 476,632
Wastewater plant 100,586 81,716
Construction work in progress 156,029 167,397
6,877,033 6,479,219
Less-accumulated depreciation 1,418,124 1,276,386
$5,458,209 $5,202,833

Rote 6: Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Until September 17, 2001 the Company’s Dividend Reinvest-
ment and Stock Purchase Plan provided for optional cash pur-
chases of newly issued common stock of the Company. In ad-
dition to permitting record holders of common stock to have
all or part of their dividends automatically reinvested in addi-
tional shares of common stock, the plan permitted stockhold-
ers to purchase up to five thousand dollars of common stock
each month directly from the Company. This plan was sus-
pended in connection with the anticipated merger with RWE.

Note 7: Shareholders Rights Plan

On June 1, 2000 the Company announced that it had amended
its Shareholder Rights Agreement. The Agreement provides
for certain consequences if more than a stated percentage of
the Company’s common stock is acquired by any person or
group of persons without prior consent of the Company’s Board
of Directors. The amendment lowered that percentage, and
the percentage of ownership that triggers the dilutive effect of
the rights issued under the Agreement, to 10% of the
Company’s outstanding common shares.
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Each Right under the amended plan entitles shareholders
to buy one share of the Company’s common stock at an exer-
cise price of §150. Each Right entitles its holder to purchase,
at the Right’s then-current exercise price, shares of the
Company’s common stock, or a number of shares of an acquir-
ing company’s stock, which would have a market value of two
times the exercise price. The Rights become exercisable if
there is a public announcement that a person or group ac-
quires, or commences a tender offer to acquire, 10% or more
of the outstanding shares of the Company. The Rights also
become exercisable if the Company is acquired in a merger or
a person or group acquires 10% or more of the outstanding
shares of the Company.

The Rights are redeemable, in whole, but not in part, by
the Company at a price of $.0005 per Right under certain cir-
cumstances. The Rights do not have voting or dividend rights
and, until they become exercisable, have no dilutive effect on
the earnings per share of the Company.

In accordance with the RWE merger agreement, as of Sep-
tember 16, 2001, the Company amended the rights agreement
to provide that none of the approval, execution, delivery or per-
formance of the merger agreement or the voting agreement or
the completion of the transactions contemplated thereby will
cause the rights under the rights agreement to be adjusted or
become exercisable. The amendment also provides that the rights
will terminate immediately prior to the completion of the merger.

Note 8: Employee Benefits

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company maintains noncontributory defined benefit pen-
sion plans covering substantially all associates employed in
its regulated utility and shared services operations. Benefits
under the plans are based on the associate’s years of service
and compensation. The Company’s funding policy is to con-
tribute at least the minimum amount required by the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Pension plan assets
are invested in a number of investments including equity
mutual funds, United States Government securities, guaran-
teed interest contracts with a major insurance company and
publicly traded bonds.

The Company realized a §16,574 settlement gain in 2000
in connection with the purchase of non-participating annuity
contracts to cover vested benefits of certain retirees. These
benefits had previously been provided through an immediate
participation guarantee contract.

Pension expense in excess of the amount contributed to the
pension plans is deferred by certain regulated subsidiaries pend-
ing future recovery in rates charged for water services as contri-
butions are made to the plans (see Regulatory Assets in Note
2). These subsidiaries have recorded their $12,742 portion of
the settlement gain as a reduction of the regulatory asset. The
remaining $3,832 of the settlement gain was recognized as
pension income in 2000.

The Company also has several unfunded noncontributory
supplemental non-qualified pension plans that provide addi-
tional retirement benefits to certain associates of the Com-
pany and its subsidiaries.

The Company maintains postretirement benefit plans pro-
viding varying levels of medical and life insurance to eligible
retirees. The adoption of a new accounting standard for other
postretirement benefits caused a transition obligation of
$143,391 at January 1, 1993 which is being amortized over
20 years. The Company’s policy is to fund postretirement ben-
efit costs accrued. Plan assets are invested in equity and bond

mutual funds.

Other
Pension Postretiremant
Benefits Benefits

2001 2000 2001 2000

Change In benefit ohligation
Benefit obligation

at January 1 $423,463 $548,074 $240,193 $204,441
Service cost 15,963 14,198 7,391 6,728
Interest cost 32,663 39,852 17,283 16,455
Plan participants’

contributions —_ - 916 1,080
Amendments 325 — (10,389) 637
Actuarial (gain) loss 13,954 51,057 15,734 20,864
Acquisitions —_ 374 — 1,035
Settlement — (212,660) — —
Benefits paid (9,609) (17,532) (11,024) (11,047)

Benefit obligation
at December 31

Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan

assets at January 1
Actual return on

$476,753 $423,463 $260,114 $240,193

$380,773 $598,302 $150,347 $148,014

plan assets (8,408} 7,404 (7,369} (3,341)
Employer contribution 1,172 1,109 18,207 15,641
Plan participants’

contributions —_ — 916 1,080
Settlement — (212,660) —_ —
Acquisitions — 374 —_ —
Benefits paid (9,609) (17,532) (11,024) (11,047)
Other — 3,776 — —

Fair value of plan assets
at December 31

Funded status at
December 31
Unrecognized net transition

$365,930 $380,773 $151,077 $150,347

$(110,829) $ (42,690) $(109,037) $ (89,846)

obligation (asset) (1,384) (2,554) 75,084 81,681
Unrecognized prior

service cost 6,184 7,356 (4,389) 6,249
Unrecognized net

actuarial (gain) loss 43,684 (12526) 24,574 (12,014)

Net amount recognized

$(62,388) § (50,414) $(13,808) § (13,930)

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost $ 312 % 439 8 — 8 —
Accrued benefit liability (62,667) (50,853) (13,808) (13,930)
Additional minimum liability (048) (1,078) — —
Intangible asset 245 1,078 — —

Net amount recognized

$(52,355) 3(50,414) $(13,808) $(13,930)
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The projected benefit obligation and accumulated benefit
obligation for pension plans with accumulated benefit obliga-
tions in excess of plan assets (the supplemental plans are un-
funded) were $23,709 and $19,130, respectively, as of De-
cember 31, 2001, and $21,847 and $18,131, respectively, as
of December 31, 2000.

2001 2000 1999

Components of net periodic
pension benefit cost

Service cost $15,963 $14,198 $17,614
Interest cost 32,663 39,952 41,151
Expected return on plan assets (33,929) (44,146)  (46,387)
Amortization of transition asset (1,161) (1,828) (2,159)

Amortization of prior
service cost 1,496 2,405 2,312

Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss  (1,927) (5,580) 19
Net periodic pension benefit cost 13,113 5,001 12,550
Settlement gain - (16,574) -
Total pension (income) cost $13,113 3 (11,573) $12,550
Components of net periedic other
postretirement benefit cost

Service cost $7,391 $6,728 $7,581

Interest cost 17,293 16,455 14,938
Expected return on plan assets (12,88%) (11,976) (9,759)

Amortization of transition obligation 6,637 6,812 6,812
Amortization of prior service cost 248 455 458

Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss (564) (2,407) 213
Net periodic other
postretirement benefit cost $18,7140 $16,067 $20,243
COther
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2001 2000 2001 2000
Weighted-average assumptions
as of December 31
Discount rate 7.25% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets  9.00%  9.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.75%  4.75%

7.258%  7.50%
8.30% 8.30%
4.7%% 4.75%

The health care cost trend rate, used to calculate the
Company’s cost and obligation for postretirement health care
benefits, is a 10% annual rate in 2002 that is assumed to de-
crease gradually to a 5.0% annual rate in 2007 and remain at
that level thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant
effect on the amounts reported for the other postretirement
benefit plan. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health
care cost trend rates would have the following effects:
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One-Percentage-
Point Decrease
a8

One-Percentage-
Point Increase

Effect on total of service and

interest cost components $3,745 $(3,142)
Effect on other postretirement
benefit obligation $33,814 $(29,053)

Savings Plans for Employees

The Company maintains 401(k) savings plans that allow asso-
ciates to save for retirement on a tax-deferred basis. Compensa-
tion expense associated with these savings plans was $3,836 in
2001, $3,373 in 2000 and $3,491 in 1999,

Included in the above expenses were the Company’s match-
ing contributions to the primary savings plan totaling $3,398
for 2001, $2,958 for 2000 and $2,781 for 1999 that are in-
vested in a fund of Company common stock.

Employees’ Stock Ownership Plan

The Company maintains an Employees’ Stock Ownership Plan
which provides for beneficial ownership of Company common
stock by associates who are not included in a bargaining unit.
Each participating associate can elect to contribute an amount
that does not exceed 2% of their wages. In addition to the
associate’s participation, the Company makes a contribution
equivalent to 1/2% of each participant’s qualified compensa-
tion, and matches 100% of the contribution by each partici-
pant. The Company recorded as an expense contributions of
$1,721 for 2001, $1,765 for 2000 and $1,805 for 1999 that it
made to the plan.

Note 9: Stock-Based Compensation

In May 2000 the Company’s shareholders approved the 2000
Stock Award and Incentive Plan (2000 Plan). The Plan re-
placed the Company’s previous Long-Term Performance-Based
Incentive Plan (Previous Plan) which had been in effect since
1994. Under the Previous Plan, awards could be paid in the
form of cash, restricted shares of common stock, or a combi-
nation of both. The 2000 Plan allows the Company to con-
tinue to grant long-term performance-based awards similar to
those that could be paid under the Previous Plan, and also
authorizes a broad range of other awards, including options,
reload options, deferred stock, performance awards, stock
appreciation rights and other stock-based awards, as well as
cash-based awards. Up to 4,276,551 shares of common stock
may be issued under the 2000 Plan, of which approximately
3,300,000 shares were available to be granted at December
31, 2001.

Stock Options

In May 2000 the Board of Directors approved the issuance of
non-qualified stock options to executives and other key asso-
ciates as permitted under the 2000 Plan. Under this plan the
options generally are granted at prices not less than the mar-
ket value of the stock at the date of grant, become exercisable
ratably over a three-year period beginning one-year from the
date of grant, and expire ten years from the date of grant. The
options immediately vest in the event of a change in control.
The Company applies the intrinsic value-based methodology
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in accounting for stock options. Accordingly, no compensa-
tion expense has been recognized for stock option awards. Had
compensation cost for stock option awards under the 2000 Plan
been determined by using the fair value at the grant date, the
Company’s net income and diluted earnings per share would
have been the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2001 2000
Net income:
As reported $161,483 $161,061
Pro forma 158,630 158,996
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $1.67 $1.61
Pro forma 1.59 1.58

The foregoing impact of compensation cost was determined
using a modified Black-Scholes methodology and the follow-
ing assumptions:

2001 2000
Expected dividend yield 2.92% 3.99%
Expected volatility 30.17% 28.70%
Risk-free interest rate 4.75% 6.58%
Weighted average expected life 7 years 7 years

The following table summarizes information about options
for the years ended December 31:

2001 2000
Optionsto  Weighted-  Optionsto  Weighted-
Purchase Average Purchase Average
Shares Exercise Shares Exercise
Price Price
Outstanding at
beginning of year 781,631 $22.58 - § -

Granted
Exercised
Cancelled/Expired
Outstanding at

163,892  28.67 809,806  22.58
(62,184)  22.56 - -
(7,588)  25.81 (28,175)  (22.56)

end of year 895,751 $23.66 781,631 $22.58
Exercisable at
year end 273,025 $22.80 19,975 $22.56

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during
the year was $8.29 and $6.54 for the years ended December
31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about fixed
stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Weighted- Weighted-

Remaining Average Average

Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

$22.56 723,916 7.9 $2256 258,259 $22.56

23.44 11,893 8.8 23.44 3,966 23.44

28.19 133,050 8.5 28.19 10,800 28.19
30.19to

32.34 26,892 8.7 31.10 - -

Options granted under the Company’s long-term incentive
program were 163,892 and 195,706 for the three-year perfor-
mance cycles beginning on January 1, 2001 and 2000, re-
spectively. Also in 2000, all of the participants in the long-
term incentive program’s three-year performance cycles be-
ginning on January 1, 1998 and 1999 accepted the opportu-
nity to relinquish their participation in those cycles in exchange
for a total of 614,100 options.

Restricted Stock

Under the 2000 Plan and the Previous Plan, designated ex-
ecutives and other key associates are eligible to receive re-
stricted stock awards if performance cycle goals based on earn-
ings-per-share growth and total return to Company sharehold-
ers in comparison to a designated peer group of companies
are met. The fair value of the restricted stock is being charged
to expense over each three-year performance cycle. The Com-
pany awarded 19,796 shares with a value of $380 in 2000 and
30,788 shares with a value of $893 in 1999. The market value
of the commeon stock expected to be awarded has been re-
corded as unearned compensation and is shown as a separate
component of common stockholders’ equity.

Hote 10: General Taxes

Components of general tax expense for the years presented in
the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive in-
come are as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Gross receipts and franchise $ 42,975 $ 43,425 $ 41,839
Property and capital stock 64,164 61,173 58,358
Payroli 17,278 16,243 18,445
Other general 5,116 4,378 4,032
$129,533 $125,219 $122,674

Hote 11: Income Taxes

Components of income tax expense for the years presented in
the consolidated statement of income and comprehensive in-
come are as follows:

2001 2000 1999

State Income Taxes:

Current $ 13,725 $14265  $10,483
Deferred
Current (49) 30 199
Non-current 3,457 3,158 3,600
$ 17,133 $17453  $14,282
Federal Income Taxes:
Current $ 69,356 $63,545  $47,858
Deferred
Current 36 35 1,449

Non-current
Amortization of deferred
investment tax credits

25,338 25,826 29,248

(1,539)
$ 83,191

(1,553) (1,437)
$87,853 . $77,118
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A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory fed-
eral income tax rate to actual income tax expense is as
follows:

2001 2000 1999

Income tax at statutory rate $ 95,132 $ 93,228 380,622
Increases (decreases)
resulting from --
State taxes, net of
federal taxes 11,136 11,345 9,283
Flow through differences 1,359 1,736 1,708
Amortization of investment
tax credits {1,539) (1,553) (1,437)
Subsidiary preferred
Dividends 1,046 1,088 1,144
QOther, net 3,190 (538) 80
Actual income tax expense $110,324 $105,306  $91,400

The following table provides the components of the net
deferred tax liability at December 31:

2001 2000 1999

Deferred Tax Assels:

Advances and contributions $798,574 $197,390 $185.424

Deferred investment tax credits 15,558 16,324 16,731
Other 40,518 31,932 32,637
254,650 245,646 234,792
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Utility plant, principally due
to depreciation differences 729,825 700,627 647,964
Income taxes recoverable
through rates 93,975 93,307 93,167
Other comprehensive income 3,538 16,180 62,574
Other 51,761 40,875 41,547
879,099 850,989 845,252

$(624,443) $(605,343) $(610,460)

No material valuation allowances were required on deferred
tax assets at December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Note 12: Leases

The Company has entered into operating leases involving cer-
tain facilities and equipment. Rental expenses under operat-
ing leases were $17,579 for 2001, $16,532 for 2000 and
$15,192 for 1999. Capital leases currently in effect are not
significant.

At December 31, 2001, the minimum annual future rental
commitment under operating leases that have initial or remain-
ing noncancellable lease terms in excess of one year are
$10,268 in 2002, $8,472 in 2003, $6,944 in 2004, $5,895 in
2005, $4,896 in 2006 and $5,777 thereafter.
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Note 13: Revelving Credit Agreements

In June 2000 the Company completed the formation of a new
wholly owned subsidiary, American Water Capital Corp., a
special purpese corporation that serves as the primary fund-
ing vehicle for American Water Works Company and its regu-
lated subsidiaries. American Water Works has fully and un-
conditionally guaranteed the securities of American Water
Capital.

American Water Capital has a 364-day $500,000 revolv-
ing credit agreement with a group of ten domestic and inter-
national banks. The renewal date for this facility is June 25,
2002. Borrowing under the revolving credit line, at the
Company’s option, bears interest at a rate based upon either a
defined base rate or the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR). The Company pays a commitment fee of 15 basis
points on the entire amount of the commitment (whether bor-
rowed or not borrowed) and a usage fee of 40 basis points (50
basis points if borrowings exceed $167). These fees may fluc-
tuate based upon the Company’s current bond rating. Under
the credit agreement, the Company must maintain certain fi-
nancial ratios and meet certain balance sheet tests. No com-
pensating balances are required under the agreement.

American Water Works Company and its subsidiaries also
maintain lines of credit with various banks. Borrowings under
such lines of credit generally are payable on demand and bear
interest at variable rates. Agreements with lending banks gen-
erally do not have compensating balance requirements.

American Water Capital had $395,561 and $170,367 out-
standing under commercial paper borrowings at December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively, all of which was classified as
short-term debt. American Water Capital’s revolving credit
agreement supports these borrowings. Commercial paper bor-
rowings at December 31, 2001 and 2000 had weighted-aver-
age interest rates of 2.35% and 7.31%, respectively.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, there was $18,522 and
$241,812 of short-term bank debt outstanding, respectively.
The weighted average interest rate on these borrowings
was 3.52% and 7.02%, respectively.

The total of the unused lines of credit and commercial pa-
per borrowings at December 31, 2001 was $120,749.

Note 14: Segment nformation

The Company has identified Regulated Utility Services and
Unregulated Services as its two reportable segments. The Com-
pany has organized its business based upon the products and
services provided and based upon similar environments. Prior
to the November 2001 acquisition of Azurix North America
and Azurix Industrials Corp. the Company’s unregulated op-
erations had not been reflected as a reportable segment due to
their limited scope and impact on the financial results of the
Company. The results of operations reported by segment in-
clude costs allocated by American Water Works Service Com-
pany. The “other items” include corporate costs of American
Water Works Company and intersegment eliminations.
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The Regulated Utility Services segment includes 26 sub-
sidiaries that provide water and wastewater to customers in
23 states. All of these companies are subject to both federal
and state regulation regarding the quality of water distributed
and the discharge of waste residuals. With the exception of
one company that serves 4,000 customers, the utility subsid-
iaries also function under economic regulations prescribed by
state regulatory commissions. A subsidiary which owns a treat-
ment plant in Massachusetts that is leased to an affiliated utility
subsidiary is also included in this segment.

The Unregulated Services segment includes American
Water Services and its subsidiaries and American Water Re-
sources. American Water Services provides a broad range of

water and wastewater services including operations and main-
tenance, residuals management, underground infrastructure
development and engineering throughout the U.S. and Canada.
American Water Resources currently offers a consumer pro-
tection program for residential water service lines and a ser-
vice to regenerate granular activated carbon that is used by
water utilities in the filtration process. Intersegment revenues
include carbon regeneration services and leased equipment
and office space.

The following table presents information about the
Company’s reportable segments beginning with the formation
of American Water Services on January 1, 2000:

Regulated
Utility Unregulated Other

Services Services items Consolidated
2001
Revenues from external customers $1,376,637 $62,230 $ - $1,438,837
Intersegment revenues - 5,980 (6,980) -
Depreciation and amaortization 178,120 5,959 132 185,211
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 669,332 5,976 (25,768) 649,540
Interest expense 173,213 1,829 17,480 192,522
income before income taxes 317,999 (2,812) (63,380) 271,807
Net income 196,097 (2,362) (32,252) 161,483
Total assets 8,316,667 313,080 (22,648) ©,607,099
Capital expenditures 365,259 15,883 17 381,159
2000
Revenues from external customers $1,310,116 $40,474 $ - $1,350,590
Intersegment revenues - 6,510 (6.510) -
Depreciation and amortization 162,182 3,570 136 165,888
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 644,753 1,060 (21,775) 624,038
Interest expense 172,216 850 18,717 191,783
Income before income taxes 310,355 (3,360) (40,628} 266,367
Net income 189,892 (2,357) (26,474) 161,061
Total assets 6,016,568 98,775 19,455 6,134,798
Capital expenditures 371,741 5,372 104 377,217

Hote 18: Fair Yalues of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the
Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial
instruments:

Current assets and current liabilities: The carrying amount
reported in the balance sheet for current assets and current
liabilities, including revolving credit debt due to the short-
term maturities and variable interest rates, approximates their
fair values.

Preferred stocks with mandatory redemption requirements
and long-term debt: The fair values of the Company’s preferred
stocks with mandatory redemption requirements and long-term
debt are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based
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on the Company’s current incremental financing rates for simi-
lar types of securities.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s fi-
nancial instruments at December 31 are as follows:

Carrying
2001 - Amount Fair Value

Preferred stocks of subsidiaries with
mandatory redemption requirements  § 30,474 $ 32,679

Long-term debt of the Company 309,000 307,907

Long-term debt of subsidiaries 2,404,137 2,436,153
Garrying

2000 Amount Falr Value

Preferred stocks of subsidiaries with

mandatory redemption requirements  $ 32902 $ 34,395
Long-term debt of the Company 211,000 211,211
Long-term debt of subsidiaries 2,218,644 2,267,171

Hlote 16: Commitments and Gontingencies

Construction programs of subsidiaries for 2002 are estimated
to cost approximately $500,000. Commitments have been made
in connection with certain construction programs.

The Company is routinely involved in condemnation pro-
ceedings and legal actions relating to several utility subsid-
iaries. In the opinion of management, none of these matters
will have a material adverse effect, if any, on the financial
position or results of operations of the Company.

Nete 17: Quarterly Finzncial Data (Unavdited)

Summarized quarterly financial data for 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
2007 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Operating revenues $316,427 $363,878 $394,956 $363,626
Operating income 87,933 125,868 148,798 97,59%
Net income 23,461 439,381 55,777 32,864
Net income to common stock 23,315 49,235 55,631 32,718
Basic and diluted earnings per common share $ 0.24 $ 0.50 $ 0.56 $ 0.33

First Second Third Fourth
2000 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Operating revenues $307,759 $346,409 $364,125 $332,297
Operating income 90,448 120,011 136,135 108,584
Net income 27,083 45,139 50,731 38,108
Net income to common stock 26,087 44,143 49,735 37,396
Basic and diluted earnings per common share $ 027 $ 045 $ 051 $ 038
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Company information

Range of Market Prices AWK is the trading symbol of American Water Works Company, Inc. The Company’s common stock is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange. The Company’s preferred and preference stocks were redeemed on March 1, 2002.

Common Stock 5% Preferred Stock 5% Preference Stock
Newspaper listing AmWirWks A Wat pr A Wat pf
2001 High Low High Low High Low
1st quarter $33.50 $25.50 $22.00 $18.00 $22.25 $18.50
2nd quarter 33.40 29.05 22.50 21.45 22.00 20.00
3rd quarter 42.50 28.81 22.50 21.25 23.50 20.55
4th quarter 42.00 39.25 24.00 22.35 25.00 22.25
Quarterly dividend paid per share $.235 $.3125 $.3125
Number of shareholders at December 31, 2001 38,665 164 545
2000 High Low High Low High Low
1st quarter $24.50 $18.94 $18.00 $17.00 $18.75 $16.00
2nd quarter 25.75 21.13 19.50 17.00 20.50 17.00
3rd quarter 27.88 23.75 19.50 17.50 19.50 17.75
4th quarter 29.38 23.31 19.50 18.00 19.50 17.75
Quarterly dividend paid per share $.225 $.3125 $.3125
Number of shareholders at December 31, 2000 41,391 172 590

The common and 5% preferred sfocks have voting rights.

Options Trading Options for Company stock (AWK) are traded on the Philadelphia Stock Exchange (Newspaper listing: PB).

Dividend Reinvestment and Optional Stock Purchases The Company suspended further participation in its Dividend Reinvestment and
Stock Purchase Plan effective September 17, 2001.

Shareholder [nformation Inquiries regarding shareholder stock ownership, dividends or transfer/reissuance of shares can be
addressed to our Transfer Agent, EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., P. O. Box 43010, Providence, RI 02940-3010 or call toll-free
(877)987-9757 (877-WTR-WRKS), or (781) 575-3100. Transfer requests sent by mail should provide the appropriate instructions.
Other shareholder inquiries should be directed to W. Timothy Pohl, Esq., General Counsel and Secretary, P. O. Box 1770, Voorhees,
NJ 08043, telephone (856) 346-8200.

imvestor Relations Investors desiring information about the Company can contact James E. Harrison, Vice President Investor Rela-
tions, P. 0. Box 1770, Voorhees, NJ 08043, or call (856) 346-8207. Additional news and information about the Company can be

found on our website (hitp://www.amwater.com).

Annual Meeting The 2002 Annual Meeting of American Water Works Company shareholders will be held on Thursday, May 2, 2002
at 9 a.m. at The Mansion on Main Street, Kresson and Evesham Roads, Voorhees, NJ.
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For the years ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999 1998
Revenues
Water service
Residential $ 806,220 $ 759,697 $ 733,956 $ 691,279
Commercial 289,027 278,463 262,940 249,564
Industrial 79,488 82,406 77,953 78,092
Public and other 159,224 153,302 149,531 146,299
Other water revenues 16,225 11,859 11,997 13,983
1,350,184 1,285,727 1,236,377 1,179,217
Wastewater service 206,433 24,389 24,480 20,820
Unregulated services £2,250 40,474 — —
Total revenues $ 1,438,887 $ 1,350,590 $ 1,260,857 $ 1,200,037
Water sales (million gallons)
Residential 176,659 171,548 175,487 168,617
Commercial 82,715 82,455 81,857 79,115
Industrial 44,193 46,348 45,862 46,361
Public and other 40,791 40,784 41,477 40,110
Total water sales (million gallons) 344,358 341,135 344,683 334,203
Total water customers served (thousands) 2,578 2,541 2,476 2,446
. Total wastewater customers served (thousands) 44 40 40 39
Annual water sales per customer (thousand gallons) 134 134 139 137
Annual water revenue per customer (whole dollars) $ 523 $ 506 $ 499 $ 482
Net income to common stock $ 160,899 $ 157,361 $ 134,965 $ 146,455
Diluted earnings per common share
on average shares outstanding $ 1.61 $ 1.61 $ 1.40 $ 1.54
Common dividends per share $ .94 $ .80 $ .86 $ 82
Payout ratio 58% 56% 61% 53%
Total capitalization at year-end
Long-term debt (including current portion) $2,716,106 $ 2,432,560 $ 2,431,452 $ 2,385,950
Preferred stocks 49,415 52,693 93,811 97,089
Common equity 1,758,018 1,669,677 1,634,798 1,481,611
Total capital (excluding short-term debt) $ 4,523,539 $ 4,154,930 $ 4,160,061 $ 3,964,650
Common equity — book value per share at year-end $ 17.58 $ 16.92 $ 16.82 $ 15.46
Common equity — market value per share at year-end $ 41,750 $ 29.38 $ 21.25 $ 33.75
Market to book ratio at year-end 238% 174% 126% 218%
Rate of return on beginning common equity 9.6% 9.6% 9.1% 10.9% -
Coverage ratios
On long-term debt interest before income taxes 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.5
On total interest before income taxes 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.4
On total fixed charges (including preferred dividends)
after income taxes 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.8
Total assets $ 6,607,033 $ 6,134,798 $ 5,952,206 $ 5,458,658
Utility plant $6,877,033 $ 6,479,219 $ 6,091,983 $ 5,664,349
Less-accumulated depreciation 1,418,124 1,276,386 1,152,575 1,051,322
Net utility plant $ 5,458,909 $ 5,202,833 $ 4,939,408 $ 4,613,027
Construction expenditures $ 381,158 $ 377,217 $ 467,351 $ 439,217
Net plant per customer (whole dollars) $ 2,082 $ 2,016 $ 1,963 $ 1,856
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1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

$ 658,955 $ 617,846 $ 554,448 $ 529,633 § 485,060 $ 449,109 $ 430,631
235,561 224,354 201,711 193,744 180,147 169,822 164,408
73,596 72,101 64,310 62,501 58,725 55,524 55,013
137,289 122,951 113,147 109,761 101,353 95,947 92,736
11,064 9,868 9,131 9,855 7,647 5,705 6,413
1,116,465 1,047,120 942,747 905,494 832,932 776,107 749,201
14,909 15,378 14,953 13,933 12,143 11,391 10,427

— — 8,042 5,564 5,213 5,126 5,914

$ 1,131,374 $ 1,062,498 § 965742 $ 924,991 $ 850,288 $ 792,624 § 765,542
169,307 164,700 161,552 159,140 146,360 142,553 145,005
78,542 77,319 75,678 74,632 70,334 69,069 70,912
46,088 46,009 44,248 45,189 43,295 42,874 43,963
39,831 36,152 35,653 35,226 32,384 32,098 34,322
333,768 324,180 317,131 314,187 292,373 286,594 294,202
2,400 2,380 2,210 2,192 2,163 2,023 2,000

25 24 24 19 18 18 18

139 136 143 143 135 142 147

$ 465 $ 440 8 427 $ 413 $ 385 $ 384 $ 375
$ 133,707 $ 112,836 $ 104,739 $ 90,653 $ 80,807 $ 78709 $ 86,600
$ 1.42 $ 1.26 $ 1.29 $ 115 $ 1.05 $ 1.02 $ 1.13
$ .76 $ .70 $ .64 $ .54 $ .50 $ .46 $ 43
54% 56% 50% 47% 48% 45% 38%

$ 2,129,228 $ 2,006,966 $ 1,642,453 $ 1,591,119 $ 1,402,798 $ 1,235,820 $1,154,792
97,663 99,012 100,287 101,698 104,490 109,529 106,770
1,341,946 1,241,167 992,240 895,031 805,660 755,262 706,098

$ 3,568,837 $ 3,347,145 $ 2,734,980 $ 2,587,848 $ 2,312,948 $ 2,100,611 $ 1,967,660
$ 14.18 $ 13.29 $ 11.99 $ 1115 $ 10.41 $ 9.81 $ 9.23
$ 27.31 $ 20.63 $ 19.44 $ 13.50 $ 15.00 $ 13.69 $ 13.25
193% 155% 162% 121% 144% 140% 144%
10.8% 11.4% 11.7% 11.3% 10.7% 11.1% 13.4%

2.5 24 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.3

2.3 2.2 2.1 22 2.2 21 2.2

1.7 1.6 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.7

$ 4,992,023 $ 4,682,097 $ 4,016,353 $ 3,758,454 $ 3,508,783 $ 2,911,315 $ 2,690,968
$ 5,199,809 $ 4,829,053 $ 4,129,955 $ 3,805,093 $ 3,517,584 $ 3,121,026 $2,901,498
l 940,543 851,446 744,914 677,890 616,053 532,765 489,676
$ 4,259,266 $ 3,977,607 $3,385,041 $ 3,127,203 $ 2,901,531 $ 2,588,261 $2,411,822
$ 394,429 $ 313,814 $ 364,560 $ 300,772 $ 231398 $ 237,214 $ 215575
$ 1,756 $ 1,655 $ 1,615 $ 1,414 $ 1,330 $ 1,268 $ 1,195
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